Greater Clevelang 1240 West 6th Street
Regional Transit Authority Cleveland, Ohio 44113-1302
Phone: 216-566-5100

riderta.com

MEETING NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the following meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority will take place at Tuesday, November 16, 2022 in the Board Room of the
Autharity, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, OH 44113 for consideration of the listad iterms and
such other items that may properly come before the Board and be acted upon. This meeting will be

members of the public. Members of the public may attend in person.

Based on Centers for Disease Contral (“COC") guidance to avoid crowded places where you cannot
stay 6 feet away from others and Ohio Department of Public Health advice regarding congregating
and social distancing, as well as RTA’s interest in protecting cornmunity and employee health and
safety, RTA Board Room and Meeting Room 1 capacity is limited to thirty-six (36) people to allow for
social distancing. To accommodate members of the public, RTA will fimit the number of staff
permitted in the Board Room. All persons entering RTA's Main Office Building ("MOB") at 1240
West 6" Street are required to maintain a distance of six feet or more from other individuals who are
not members of their family or household,

As a result of a federal court order on April 18, 2022, the CDC's January 29, 2021 order requiring
masks on public transportation conveyances and at transportation hubs is no longer in

effect. The CDC continues to recommend that people wear masks in indoor public transportation
setlings at this time.  As a result, GCRTA recommends, but will not require, that members of the

public wear a mask/face covering.

The meeting package will be posted on RTA’s website at (www riderta com/baard), on RTA's Facebaok

9 AM, Operational Planning & Infrastructure Commitiee
» Service Plan — Presentation on the 2023 Service Plan
* Budget Presentation - Proposed FY 2023 Budget

1% Public Hearing
+ Y 2023 Budget

Organizational, Services & Performance Monitering Committes
«  Quarterly Management Report — Review of 3™ quarter 2022 results

s  TransPro Scorecards - Presentation of 3™ Quarter scorecards and customer
experience surveys

Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee

« Internal Audit Quarterly Report - Presentation of 3" quarter 2022 Internal Audit work

* Executive Session Requested - To confer with RTA's attorney regarding a dispute
that is the subject of pending and imminent court action.

Board of Trustees Meeting — agenda attached

India L. Birdsong Terry
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

IBT:tab
Attachment



AGENDA

RTA OPERATIONAL PLANNING & INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE

Tuesday, November 15, 2022

Committee Members: Ms. Lauren R. Welch, Chair

Ms. Karen Gabriel Moss, Vice Chair
Mr. Terence P. Joyce
Ms. Luz N. Pellut

Rolt Call

Service Plan — Presentation on the FY 2023 Service Plan.

Presenter:
s Joel Freilich, Director, Service Management

Budget Presentation - Proposed FY 2023 Operating Budget

Presenter:
« Kay Sutula, Director, Office of Management and Budget

First Public Hearing - Proposed FY 2023 Operating Budget

Adjourn



Greater Cleveland Interoffice Mamo
Regional Transi Authority

To: Rev. Charles P. Lucas, Presidant,
and Members, Board of Trustees

From: India L. Birdsong Terry D dd—)

-

General Manager, Chief Executive Officer &._

—

Date: November 10, 2022

Subject: FY 2023 Service Management Plan
At the November 15, 2022, meeting of the Operational Planning & Infrastructure Commitiee,
staff will present the 2023 Service Management Plan (SMP). As always, the SMP is aligned

with the General Manager's Recommended Budget and includes an update on bus route
productivity and ridership.

IBT/f



Greater Cleveland Interoffice Memo
Regional Transit Authority

To: Rev. Charles P. Lucas, President
and Members, Board of Trustees
From: India L. Birdsong Terry e
(General Manager, Chief Executive Officer( @:
Date: November 10, 2022
Subject: Proposed Fiscal Year {FY) 2023 Budget Development

At the November 15, 2022 QOperational Planning & Infrastructure Committee meeting, staff will
present the proposed FY 2023 Budget. The projected 2022 year-end balance of $49.0 million
represents a 2.2-month reserve. This is largely due to the funding received through the
American Rescue Plan Act (ARP) that paid for operations resulting in savings from not having to
use funding that traditionally paid for operations,

The proposed FY 2023 Budget includes total revenues of $298.8 million. With a beginning
balance of $49.0 million, total resources are $348.9 million. The two largest sources of revenue
are Sales & Use Tax and Passenger Fares estimated at $259.0 million and $24.7 million,
respectively.

Operating expenses are budgeted at $282 .4 million, which includes funding for 14 new positions
and wages increases, which are largely contractual through the FOP and ATU. Transfers to
other funds total $41.9 million, which includes an 11% transfer for the Capital Improvement
Program. With total expenditures of $324.3 million against total resources of $348.9 miltion, the
available ending balance is budgeted at $24.6 million, or a 1.0-month reserve,

At the December 8, 2022 Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee meeting, we will
again present the FY 2023 Budget as well as a second public hearing. The resotution will be
presented at the December Board Meeting.

Please call me if you have any guestions or require additional information prior to Tuesday's
meeting.

IBT/kms



interoffice Memao

To: india Birdsong Terry, General Manager, CEO ;Z@E)

From:  Rajan D. Gautam, Deputy General Manager, Financé:Secretary Treasurer
Subject: Public Netices for Public Hearings — FY 2023 Budget - Amended

Date: Oclober 3, 2022

Notice is hereby given that a public hearing on the FY 2023 Operating and Capital Budgets of the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority will be held at 9:00 A.M. Eastern Daylight Time on
Tuesday, November 15, 2022, A second public hearing will be held at 8,00 A M. Eastern Daylight
Time on Tuesday, December 6, 2022, Both public hearings will be held in the Board Room of the
Autherity, 1st Floor, Main Office Building, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, Ohio.

A copy of the proposed budget is on file in the Office of Management and Budget of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, 4th Floor, 1240 West Sixth $t, Cleveland, OH, and
available for public ingpection. Public cormments for the Public Hearings can be made in person
at the meeting, via phone during the Public Hearing (440-276-4600), or via email (pubiic-
comment@qerta org). India Birdsong Terry, General Manager, Chief Executive Officer,

Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

ds



AGENDA
RTA ORGANIZATIONAL, SERVICES & PERFORMANCE MONITORING COMMITTEE

Tuesday, November 15, 2022

Committes Members: Mayor Anthony D, Biasiotta, Chair
Ms. Karen Gabriel Moss, Vice Chair
Mayor David E. Weiss
Ms. Lauren R. Weich

l. Roll Call

Il Quarterly Management Report - Review of 3" quarter 2022 results,

Presenter(s):
» India L. Birdsong Terry, General Manager, CGEO

t, TransPro Scorecards - Presentation of 3% Quarter scorecards and
customer experience surveys

Presenter(s):
« [ndia L. Birdsong Terry, General Manager, CEQ
» Ehren Bingaman, Managing Principal, TransPro

V. Adjourn



AGENDA

RTA AUDIT, SAFETY COMPLIANCE AND REAL ESTATE COMMITTEE

Tuesday, November 15, 2022

Committee Members:

Roll Call

Internal Audit Quarterly Report - Presentation of 3 quarter 2022 Internal

Mayor Paul A. Koomar, Chair

Ms. Karen Gabriel Moss, Vice Chair
Mr. Terence P. Joyce

Ms. Valarie J. MicCall

Mavyor David &£, Weiss

Audit work.

Presenter(s).

« Tony Garofoli, Executive Director, internal Audit

Executive Session Requested - To confer with RTA’s attorney regarding a

dispute that is the subject of pending and imminent court aclion.

Adjourn



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

AGENDA

RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
Tuesday, November 15, 2022

Call to order
Roll Call
Certification regarding notice of meeting
Approval of the October 25, 2022 Board Meeting minutes
Public comments (2 minutes) on agenda items:
a. in person
b. Phone: 440-276-4600
¢. Web form (comments will be forwarded to Board and staff)

Board Governance Committee report

Operational Planning & infrastructure Commitiee report
s Chair; Ms. Lauren R, Welch

Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee report
‘ »  Chair; Mayor Anthony D. Biasiotta

Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee report
»  Chair: Mayor Paul A, Koomar

External and Stakeholder Relations and Advocacy Committee report
=  Chair: Mr. Terence P, Joyce

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)
» Board Liaison: TBD

Ad Hoc Committee reports:
» Ad Hoc Paratransit Committee — President Charles P. Lucas, Chair
»  Ad Hoe Technology Committee — Ms. Luz Pellot, Chair

Introduction of new employees and announcement of promotions
tntroduction of resolutions:
A. 2022-98 — Authorizing a change order to exercise an option under

Contract No. 2020-071 with Gillig, LLC for the purchase and delivery of
up to 20, 40-ft. low floor CNG coaches, as specified, at a unit price of



RTA Board of Trustees
November 15, 2022

Page 2

$652 031.66, for an amount not to exceed $13,040,631.20 (RTA
Development Fund, Fleet Management Department budget)

. 2022-99 ~ Authorizing Contract No, 2022-111 with Independence

Excavating, Inc. for Project 27Y(A) - Cuyahoga Viaduct Phase 1A
Bulkhead Repair, as specified and as required, in an amount not to
excead $869,500.00 (RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project
Development Department budget)

. 2022-100 -~ Authorizing Confract No. 2022-068 with Workwear Qutfitters,

LLC for the furnishing of Operator and Supervisor Uniform Services for a
period of three years, in an amount not to exceed $1,500,000.00, with
two, one-year options in an amount not to exceed $500,000.00 per year,
for a total contract amount not to exceed $2,500,000.00 for a period of
five years {General Fund, various department budgets)

. 2022-101 —~ Authorizing a ratification and time extension to Contract No.

2014-054 with AT&T Corporation for Telecommunications Services, in an
amount not to exceed $352,627.00, for a tofal contract amount not to
exceed $2,695,157.00 (General Fund, Innovation & Technology
Department budget)

. 2022-102 — To amend the fiscal year 2022 revenues and apprapriations,

as adopted in Resolution Nos, 2021-112, 2022-068, and 2022-083, to
provide for an increase in the appropriation in the Insurance Fund in the
amount of $500 000 :

o 2022-103 ~ Authorizing the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

to enter info a purchase and sale agreement with XAPC, Co. for the
purchase of 15583 Brookpark Road, Brook Park, Ohio, Cuyahoga County
Permanent Parce!l Number 343-11-004, for the sum of $1,500,000.00

. 2022-104 — Removing Sections 644,01 Work Week and Hours, 644,02

Compensation, 644.03 Payroll Checks, 6§44.04 Payroll Deductions,
644.05 Overtime and 644,06 Call-out Policy for exempt employees from
the Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority as duplicative of Personnel Policies 400.01, 400.02,
400.03, 400.04, 400.05 and 400.06, respectively, and amending those
Personnel Policies

. 2022-105 — Amending Section 222.05(e) of the Codified Rules and

Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority fo
increase the compensation for members of the Civilian Oversight
Committee from $1,200 to $1,800 per year (Board of Trustees
Department budget)

2022-106 — Adopting the Operating Procedures of the Civilian Oversight
Committee



RTA Board of Trustees

Novem
Page 3

15.

16.
17.
18.

19.

20.

21,

22.

ber 15, 2022

Secretary-Treasurer's Report:

a.  General Fund Revenue ~ status as of Qctober 31, 2022 versus 2021
actuals

b. Geneéral Fund Revenue — status as of Qctober 31, 2022 versus the 2022
budget

¢.  Sales & Use Tax Receipts Report budgeted during 2022, actual receipts
through November 2022 — TO BE DISTRIBUTED AT A LATER DATE

d. Inventory of Treasury Investmeants as of October 31, 2022

e. Debt Service Schedule and Status of Bond Retirament Fund (cash basis)
as of October 31, 2022

f. Summary of Investment Performance, Year to Date through October 31,
2022

g. Report on Investment Earnings (cash basis) as of October, 2022

h.  Compaosition of Investment Portfolio as of October 31, 2022

i.  Banking and Financial Relationships as of QOctober 31, 2022

General Manager's Report
President's Report
Old Business
a. Proposed 2023 Board and Committee Meeting Schedule
New Business
Public comments (2 minutes) on public transit related items:
a. Inperson

b. Phone: 440-276-4600
¢. Web form {comments will be forwarded to Board and staff)

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, December 20, 2022
in the Board Room of the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth
Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113, This meeting will be live-streamed on RTA's
Board page (www.RideRTA.com/board)} by clicking the meeting date. The public
is welcome to attend in person.

Adiournment



Minutes
RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
9:11 a.m. October 25, 2022

Board Members: Lucas (Chair), Moss (Vice Chair), Biasiotta, Joyce, Koomar, McCall, Pellot, Weiss,
Welch

Naot present: None

Staff: Birdsong Terry, Burney, Caver, Coffey, Dangelo, Davidson, Feke, Ferraro, Fields, Fleig,
Freilich, Garofoli, Gautam, Jones, Kirkland, Miller, Walker-Minor, Woodford

Public: Gibbons, Loh, Pinkney-Butts
The meeting was called to order at 9:11 a.m. There were nine (8) board members present.

it was advised that notice of this meeting have been posted more than twenty-four hours in advance
of the meeting, that the usual notification has been given the news media and other interested
persons, and that all requirements of the Chio Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of this Board
regarding notice of meeting have been complied with.

Minutes
President Lucas stated that the minutes from the September 20, 2022 Board Meeting had baen
previously distributed and reviewed and asked whether there were any additions and/or corrections.

There were no corrections. The minutes were approved.

Public Comments — Agenda ltems

1. Rev. Pinkney-Butts — She congratuiated the retirees. items B, C and D on the agenda needs
elaborating. She asked about the property at Cudelt Station. The rail operators are
concerned about new rails and the system being overhauled. The E. 78" Street Station needs
updating. People without motorized wheelchairs don't have accommodations E. 93 and E.
116" stations.

2. Jonathan Steirer — Claveland — (Webform Comment). As a nearby resident and regular user of
the West Blvd - Cudell station, | am excited to see movement towards finally building TOD in
Cudell, especially as part of a plan to provide much-needed affordable units in the
neighborhood. | would ultimately like to see more than 80 units in this location, as it is such a
well-conneacted location and proximate to a significant number of city amenities. Additionally,
while this may be out of the current scope of this resoiution, | hope RTA can help lead a robust
group of local stakeholders calling for traffic calming and improved pedestrian infrastructure
along Detroit Ave and West Blvd in this location.

3. DRanigl = Cleveland — (Webform Comment); Please support the TOD next to West boulevard.

4. Arthur Henke — Cleveland — (Webform Commaent): | am writing to share my support for agenda
itern 14-D, resolution 2022-97. | live nearby in the Detroit Shoreway neighbarhood, and |
helieve that density and transit-oriented developmeant will benefit the City of Cleveland and its
residents.




RTA Board of Trustees
QOctober 25, 2022
Page 2 of 5

5. Doug Astler — Cleveland — (Webform Comment). Hello, | am writing to submit my comment of
support for the selling of land adjacent to the West Boulevard and Cudell Rapid station to
Flaherty and Colling to facilitate building of a TOD with some units below market rate.

6. Christopher Jacobs - Cleveland Heights — (Webform Comment): | am writing in support of
agenda item 2022-97, the sale of property to Flaherty & Collins (FC) for development. FC has
done great work and been an asset as a developer in Cleveland Heights, and | support RTA's
afforts to increase development near transit stations.

President Lucas mentioned that Board member Luz Pellot will be honored at an event tonight.

Committee Reports

The Audit Committee will have its next quarterly mesting on November 3 at 2:30 p.m.

Community Advisory Committea (CAC)

There was no report from the CAC,

Ad Hoc Committee Reports

There was no raport.

Intreduction of New Employeas/Fromotions

New Hires:

Monigue Burgess — Operator
Mark Cox — Operator

Lateisha Ford — Operator

Kafa Hampton - Opearator
Wiltiert Patterson — Operator
Surazal Sanders -~ Operator
Lanisha Underwood — Operator
Jaytionna Wells — Operator
Latayvia Williams — Operator
James Conroy — Line Maintainer

- = 7 2 & & & 9 ¥

+ Jaenin Deskin - Crisis Intervention Specialist

« Jason Gardner ~ Janitor

« DeAndre Hodges — Janitor

» Kim James - Janitor

= Trinity Robinson — Engineering Co-Op
Promations.

+ Anna Hlavacs — Senior Counsel
+ Alexander Terriaco - Signal Technician

Intraduction of Resolutions:

A, 2022-94 — Expressing congratulations to the employees of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority who retired during the third quarter of 2022, the adoption of which was
moved by Ms. Pellot, seconded by Ms. McCall and approved by unanimous vote.



RTA Board of Trustees
October 25, 2022
Page 3 of &

B. 2022-95 - Autherizing Centract No, 2022-094 with Vehicle Maintenance Program for the
furnishing of motorcoach filters, as specified and as required, for a period of two years, in an
amount not to exceed $134,900.00 (General Fund, Fleet Management Department budget),
the adoption of which was moved by Ms. McCall, seconded by Ms. Peliot and approved by
unanimous vote.

C. 2022-86 - Removing Sections 64210 Reduction in Workforce, 842.11 Workforce
Accommaodation, 642,12 Transitional/Atternative Work and 642.13 Pre-Termination Meeting
from the Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
as duplicates of the Personnel Policies, the adoption of which was maoved by Ms. Moss,
seconded by Ms. McCall and approved by unanimous vote,

Ms. Moss added that this updates our policies, moving it from the Code to the Personne!
Policies,

L. 2022-97 - Authorizing the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority to enter into an
option agreement with Flaherty & Collins Development, LLC, an Indiana Limited Liahility
Company, for the proposed sale of property adjacent io the West Boulevard-Cudell Rapid
Transit Station, known as Cuyahoga County Permanent Parcel Number 001-32-012 on
Detroit Avenue, Cleveland, Ohio, the adoption of which was moved by Ms. McCall,
secondad by Ms. Pellot, The roll was called, There were eight (8) ayes and one abstention
from Mr. Joyce. It passes.

Secretary-Treasurer's Report

Rajan Gautam, Deputy General Manager of Finance and Secretary-Treasurer, gave the report. The
U.S. unemployment rate for August was 3.7%, up from 3.5% in July. Otio's rate increased slightly to
4% which was 3.9% in July. The County rate is not seasonally adjusted which causes the increase in
the unemployment rate as reported. The County estimated unemployment rate was 5% in August. [n
reviewing the five largest metropolitan statistical areas in Ohio. Over the past three years, the height
of the labor force was in February 2020, After the Pandemic we are now back to pre-COVID
unemployment rates. For August the unemployment rates for Cleveland were 5.2%, down from 5.4%
in July. In Cincinnati, 3.5% rose from 3.4%. Columbus is 3.4% up from 3.3%. Daytonis 3.9% up
from 3.8%. Toledo at 4%, up from 3.8%.

Ridership continues to show gains. September ridership was 16.6% higher compared to September
2021. YTD ridership is 18.6% above 2021 levels. September passenger fares increased 32 5%
compared to September 2021 and 28% higher than budget. YTD it is 19.29% higher than the same
period in 2021. Sales tax which represents the largest source of unrastricted revenue for the General
Fund remains strong. September 2022 receipts which is based on July 2022 activity was 4.7% higher
compared to October 2021 and 2.7% higher than budget. YTD they are 6.6% higher than 2021
levels. The sales tax base is made of 23 categories. Seventeen of the 23 were positive in October.
Motor vehicles and watercraft are trending lower at 0.2%. Online sales were 17% higher compared to
Qctober 2021. Regular and statewide sales are 4.1% higher.

General Manager/CEO Report

india L. Birdsong Terry, General Manager, CEO gave the report. The Federal Transit Administrator
(FTA) conducted a Drug & Alcohol Audit Oct. 3-5. It was a review of policies and procedures., The
audit was last conduced in 2014, Staff response to FTA is due January 2023, RTA received the Chio



RTA Board of Trustees
Outober 25, 2022
Page 4 of 5

Auditor of State "Award with Distinction” for the 2021 Audit. We were noted for excellence in financial
reporting.

RTA donated two MCI| coaches to Tri-C's Transportation tnnovation Center. Tri-C President Dr.
Michae! Baston was present. The coaches will be used for training. RTA staff attended the United
Way Annual Committee Meeting, September 30, 2022 and the Northeast Ohio Areawide Coordinating
Agency (NOACA) Annual Meeting, October 7, 2022. Sharon Sobol Jordan was infroduced as the
new President and CEQO for the United Way. The theme for the NOACA meeting was “Competing
Globally Requires World-Class Infrastructure; The Bipartisan Discussion.” NOACA is a big supporter
of RTA.

Several RTA employees attended and presented at the 2022 Ohio Public Transportation Association
(OPTA) Conference, in Columbus, Ohio, October 3-5. Board member Valarie J. McCall and former
RTA General Manager/CEQ Joe Calabrese were honored at the honors luncheon during the
American Public Transportation Association (APTA) TRANSform Annual Conference in Seattle, WA,
October 8-12. Board member McCall said it was an honor to receive the award and that it is a great
achievement to have two people from RTA to receive an award.

MNew Business

The Board was presented the proposed 2023 Board and Committee Meeting schedule for
their review.

FPublic Commeants

1,

Rev. Pinkney Butts - She is concerned about the safety of workers at Tower City. The
workers must be there early. Parking is expensive in Tower City, Workers would have to park
at a station and take the train downtown to save money. She is grateful to RTA. She used the
bus to go see her son.

John Taylor — He was told by an operator not to preach on the bus. He wanted to know the
policy for preaching on the system.

Dontez Taylor — He asked to partner with RTA on a coat drive. He was directed to speak with
Or. Walker Minor. His pickup on paratransit was late.

Lou - She attended the Center for Community Solutions event. She was happy to see RTA
represented. The RTA quarterly surveys are from an administrative point of view, She asked
that the survey be conducted from a user's point of view.

Airric Stewart — Ridership concerns should be a standing agenda item. He repeated his
proposal for the 15A to run hourly from Pinecrest. [f the regular 15 ran every 20 minutes,
there would be space to run the 15A which will hit more residential neighborhoods, hospitals,
libraries and make connections at major train stations.

Alexander Wax - Rocky River (Webform Comment): T would like to see the Westlake Park and
Ride #246 brought back into service even if on a reduced schedule. it was a convenient way
for me, as | am sure many other West side commuters to get Downtown to work. | do realize
that telework has become more common as a result of the pandemic. However, as people
start {o return to their offices Downtown, | am confident the setvice will be used evenon a
reduced schedule. The 55 routes take approximation one hour each way. This takes up a lot
of our time as commuters.




RTA Board of Trustees
October 25, 2022
Page 5of b5

Upcoming Meetings

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, November 15, 2022, in the Board Room
of the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113. This meeting
will be live streamed on RTA's Board page (www.RideRTA.com/board) by selecting the meeting date.
The public is welcome to attend in person.

The meeting was adjourned at 9:.59 a.m.

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
328 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Rasolution No..

CONTRACT: AUTHORIZING A CHANGE ORDER TO EXERCISE AN 2022-98

OFTION TQ PURCHASE UP TQ 20, 40-FT. LOW FLOOR | pDate:

CNG COACHES November 10, 2022
) Initiator;
VENDOR:  GILLIG, LLC Fleet Management
AMOUNT:  NOT TO EXCEED $13,040,631.20 Department
ACTION REQUEST:
Approval 1 Review/Comment [ Information Only 01 Other
1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will authorize a change order to the contract to allow the

2.0

3.0

4.0

Authority to exercise an option for the procurement and delivery of up to twenty (20) of the
remaining 60, 40-ft. low floor CNG coaches under Contract No. 2020-071, which was approved
by the Board of Trustees in Resolution No. 2021-022, adopted March 23, 2021.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: To provide safe, reliable, and cost-effective services,
coaches are replaced on a regular cycle. FTA recommends replacement of transit buses at
twelve years, The Authority intends to replace coaches that have exceeded their useful life, in
accordance with the Authority's vehicle replacement policy and guidelines.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: On March 23, 2021, the Authority awarded Contract No.
2020-071 to Gillig, LL.C for the manufacture and delivery of up to 20, 40-ft., low-floor CNG
coaches, spare parts, tooling and training, with an option to procure up to an additional 80
coaches plus spare parts, tooling and training over the five-year term of the contract.
Resolution No. 2021-022 authorized the contract and funding of the initial purchase of 20
coaches. To date, the General Manager, CEQ has authorized five change orders, totaling
$11,285,837.40. The General Manager, CEQ authorized Change Ordar No. 1 to fund the
purchase and deletion of accessories on the 20, 40-ft. CNG coaches and option coaches. The
General Manager, CEO authorized Change Order No. 2, a no cost change to the front
cap/windshield, The General Manager, CEQ authorized Change Order No. 3 to add funds for
training. Resolution No. 2021-100 authorized Change Order No. 4 to exercise the purchase of
up to 20, 40t low floor CNG coaches. The General Manager, CEQ authorized Change Order
No. 5 to fund the purchase of driver barriers.

This resolution will authorize the funding to manufacture and deliver up to 20, 40-f., low-floor
CNG coaches at a unit price of $652 031,56 and with a scheduled delivery completion date of
third quarter 2023. The negotiated price is within the FTA suggested Producer Price index
(PP1) Best Practices Guidelines. This procurement will resulf in 40 coaches remaining under
the contract option.

A cost analysis was performed by the Procurement Department, and it has been determinead
that the price is fair and reascnable to the Authority. Contract option award is contingent upon
the successful raview of all costs associated with this procurement, compliance with Pre-
Award/Buy America Audit requirements and Federal Transit Administration approval of

applicable grants,

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Per Federal Regulations, the Office of Business
Development does not conduct Affirmative Acton reviews or establish goals on procurements
involving the purchase of Transit Motor Vehicles (TMV's)



Staff Summary & Comments
40 ft. CNG Coaches 2022-98
Page 2

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This contract option shall be funded through the RTA Development
Fund, Fleet Management Department budget, including but not limited to FTA Capital Grant
QH-2021-050-307, in the amount not to exceed $2,000,000, FTA Capital Grant OH-2021-050-
339 in the amount not to excead $2,85%9,332.50, and 100% Local Funds in the amount of
$8,181,298.70, for a total contract amount not to exceed $13,040,631.20 ($3,887,466.00 in
federal funds which represents 30% of the total cost). This resolution is contingant upon FTA
approval of pending Diesel Emission Reduction Grant (DERG), Urban Transit Program (UTP),
and pending grant revisions for Capital Grant OH-2018-027.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would delay the ability of the Authority
to purchase replacement coaches.

RECOMMENDATION: This contract option was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the
November 1, 2022 Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee meeting.
It is recommended that the negotiated offer of Gillig, LLC be accepted and the resolution
passed authorizing the General Manager, CEO to modify the contract.

ATTACHMENT: Change Order Log
Recommended and certified as appropriate to the

availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement reguirements.

M@

General Manager, Chief Executive Dfﬂcer




CHANGE ORDER LOG

CONTRACT NQ. 2020-071

MANUFACTURE AND DELIVERY OF TWENTY (20) FORTY FOOT (40) COACHES,
SPARE PARTS, TOOLING, AND TRAINING, WITH AN OPTION TO PROCURE UF TO

EIGHTY (80) ADDITIONAL COACHES EXCERCISED WITHIN FIVE YEARS OF

CONTRACT SIGNATURE

Contract # 2020-071
Original Contract Amount $11,052,060.00

Total Change Order Amount to Date: $ 11,318,217.40

Contractor: Gillig, LLC.

Total G.M. Authority Remaining § 392,060.00

FITAF WO, NOTE APPROVAL CHANGE APPROVAL NETE
Ne. DATE CRDER AUTHORITY CONTRACT
1 /2071 $(560.00) GM $11,051,500.00
5 7719721 NO COST GM $11,051,500.00
3 9/17/2021 £75,000.00 GM $11,126,500.00
4 /162021 §11.211,397.40 BOARD $22,337,897.40
5 1/28/2022 $32,380.00 GM $22,370,277.40
6 $13,040,631.20 BOARD $35,410,908.60

NOTES/CHANGE ORDER DESCRIPTION:

CO# | Various additions and deletions to the final design of the 40° coaches. Some additions are, HVAC dash
display, infotainment brochure holder, 297 infotainment monitor system. Some deletions are starting
capacitor, LED horizontal sign, ribbed interior flooring.

CO #2 No Cost change order to the front cap/windshield on the tweaty (20), forty-foot coaches and option

coaches,

CO #3 CNG training needed at the Triskett and facility. Training to include Cummins engine and Allison

transmission and CNG certificate

CO #4 Authorizes Funding for 20 coaches,

CO #5 Authorbzes the purchase and installation of Gillig driver barriers for the twenty (20) bus order.

CO #6 Authorizes Funding for 20 coaches.




RESOLUTION NO. 2022.98

AUTHORIZING A CHANGE ORDER TO EXERCISE AN OPTION UNDER
CONTRACT NO. 2020-071 WITH GILLIG, LLC FOR THE PURCHASE AND
DELIVERY OF UP TO 20, 40-FT. LOW FLOOR CNG COACHES, AS
SPECIFIED, AT A UNIT PRICE OF $652,031.56, FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO
EXCEED $13,040,631.20 (RTA DEVELOPMENT FUND, FLEET MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority has identified the need to replace revenue vehicles that have
aexceeded their useful life with simitar environmentally friendly fuel-efficient vehicles; and

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2021-022 authorized Contract Na. 2020-071 ("Contract”)
with Gillig, LLC, for the manufacture and delivery of up to 100, 40-ft., CNG coaches, spare
parts, tooling and training and the funding for the purchase of 20 coaches for delivery in 2021,
with an option to procure up to an additional 80 coaches, spare parts, tooling and training over
the five year term of the contract, at a total amount not to exceed $11,052,060.00; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the original options under the Contract, Gillig, 1.LC, located at
451 Discovery Drive, Livermore, CA 84551, has offered to manufacture and deliver up to 20, 40-
ft. low floor CNG coaches, as specified, at a unit price of $652,031.568, for a total negotiated
confract amount not to exceed $13,040,631.20, and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer of Gillig,
LLC, as negotiated, to be advantageous to the Authority, cost and other factors considered, and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Autharity, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer of Gillig, LLC to provide up to 20, 40-fi. low floor CNG coaches,
be and the same is hereby accepted,

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Exacutive Officer of the Authority be and
she is heraby authorized to enter into a change order for the exercise of an aption to Contract
No. 2020-071 with Gillig, LLC to provide funding for the purchase of up to 20, 40-ft low floor
CNG coaches, at a unit price of $652,031.56, for a total change order amount not {o exceed
$13,040,632.20.

Section 3. This contract option shall be funded through the RTA Develapment Fund,
Fleet Management Department budget, including but not limited to FTA Capital Grant OM-2021-
050-307, in the amount not to exceed $2,000,000, FTA Capital Grant OH-2021-050-339 in the
amount not to exceed $2,859,332.50, and 100% Local Funds in the amount not to exceed
$8,181,298.70, for a total contract amount not to exceed $13,040,631.20 (§ 3,887,466.00 in
federal funds which represents 30% of the total cost). This resolution is contingent upon FTA
approval of pending Diesel Emission Reduction Grant (DERG), Urban Transit Program (UTF),
and pending grant revisions for Capital Grant OM-2018-027.

Section 4, That said contract option shall be binding upon and an obligation of the
Authority contingent upon funding for future years, compliance by the contractor to the
Specifications and Addenda, thereto, if any,; the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of
Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements; and all applicable laws relating to contractual
obligations of the Authority.



Resolution No. 2022.98
Page 2

Section 5. That alf terms and conditions of the original contract remain unchanged.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immaediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: November 15, 2022
President

Attest:

Secretary- Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
WO112:22 REEET o eeeeeeeearnin
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
2022-99
CONTRACT: PROJECT 27Y(a) - CUYAHOGA VIADUCT PHASE 1A Date:
BULKHEAD REPAIR November 10, 2022
VENDOR: INDEPENDENCE EXCAVATING, INC, Initiator:
AMOUNT: $869,500.00 Engineering & Project
Development

ACTION REQUEST:
B Approval [ Review/Comment 1 Information Only (i} Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

2.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Authority to enter into a contract to provide
construction services for Project 27Y(a) - Cuyahoga Viaduct Phase 1A Bulkhead Repair.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The work to be performed under this contract includes
installing approximataly 120 linear feet of new steel sheet pile wall adjacent to the existing wall
in the Cuyahoga River and repairs to an existing storm sewer outfall pipe. This repair will
protect and extend the life of Pier 5 of the Cuyahoga Viaduct and stabilize the east bank of the

Cuyahoga River at this location.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bids (1FB") was posted on the GCRTA
Procurement website and adveriised in the local newspapers. Thirty-five (35) interested
parties, including potential subcontractors, downloaded the solicitation package. Five (5)
responsive bids were received and opened on October 20, 2022, as follows;

Company Name ' Total Base Bid
Independence Exc;;;;;ing' tne. $ 869,500.00
BECDIR Construction Co. $1,007,156.00
J.D. Williamson Construction Company | $1,009,156.00
The Great L.akes Construction Co, $1,117,111.00
The Ruhlin Co. - o $1,167,270.00

The Basis of Award is the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder for the Total Base
Bid price. Independance Excavating, Inc. was determined to be a responsible bidder. The Total
Base Bid price of $869,500.00 from independence Excavating, Inc. is 20.47% less than the
Engineer's Estimate of $1,083,286.00.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. An 8% DBE goal was established for this procurement. Independence Excavating, Inc.
has committed to achieving the DBE participation goal through the utilization of Lumberone
Supply (Caucasian Female-owned) in the amount of $78,000.00 x 60% equals $46,800.00,
RAR Contracting Co. (African American male-owned) in the amount of $17,500.00 x 60%
equals $12,500.00, and Rockport Ready Mix (Caucasian Female-owned) in the amount of
$10,500.00 for a total of $69,800.00 or 8%.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.



Staff Summary & Commants 2022-99
Cuyahoga Viaduct Phase 1A Bulkhead Repair
Page 2

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be payable through the RTA
Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budgst, including
but not limited to, Capital Grants OH-2020-044-307 and OH-2020-044-337, for a total
contract amount not to exceed $868,500.00 ($695,600.00 in federal funds which
represants 80% of total cost).

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this bid. Rejection of this bid will allow the continued deterioration of
the steel sheet pife wall and soil providing protection for the Cuyahoga Viaduct,

RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the
November 1, 2022 Operational Planning & Infrastructure Commitiee meeting. It is
recommended that the bid of Independence Excavating, Inc. be accepted and the resolution
passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

n:-'?/éenaraf Managar Chief Executlve D




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-99

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2022-111 WITH INDEPENDENCE
EXCAVATING, INC. FOR PRQUECT 27Y(a) - CUYAHOGA VIADUCT PHASE
1A BULKHEAD REPAIR, AS SPECIFIED AND AS REQUIRED, IN AN AMOUNT
NOT TO EXCEED $869,500.00 (RTA DEVELOPMENT FUND, ENGINEERING
& PROJECT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority deems it necessary to acquire construction services, as
required, under Project 27Y(a) — Cuyahoga Viaduct Phase 1A Bulkhead Repair; and

WHEREAS, the bid of Independence Excavating, inc., located at 5720 k. Schaaf Road,
Independence, Ohio 44131, was received on October 20, 2022 in an amount not to exceed
$869,500.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of
Independence Excavating, Inc. to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Independence Excavating, Inc. for Project 27Y(a) — Cuyahoga
Viaduct Phase 1A Bulkhead Repair, be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Independence Excavating, Inc. for Project
27Y(a) -~ Cuyahoga Viaduct Phase 1A Bulkhead Repair.

Section 3. That this procurement shall be payable through the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Departrment budget, including but not limited to, Capital
Grants OH-2020-044-307 and OH-2020-044-337, for a total contract amount not to exceed
$869,500.00 ($695,600.00 in federal funds which represents 80% of total cost).

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon campliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, thereto, if any;
the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance
requirements; and all applicable laws refating to the contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Independence Excavating, Inc. will attempt to exceed the 8% minimum DBE goal
assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: November 15, 2022
President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Greater Cleveland Interoffice Memo
Regional Transit Authority

To: Rev. Charles P. Lucas, President
and Members, Board of Trustees
From: tndia L. Birdsong Terry
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer Mﬂ—f’
Date: November 10, 2022
Subject; Update on Operator and Supervisor Uniforms

At the November 15, 2022 Board of Trustees ("BOT") meeting, staff will seek approval to award
Contract No. 2022-068 for Operator and Supervisor Uniform Services to Workwear Qutfitters,

LEC.

Staff presented the RFP Procurement to the Organizational, Services and Monitoring
Commitiee meating at the November 1, 2022 meeting. During that presentation, a member of
the BOT inquirad if the proposed awardee provided affordable pricing and whether a new
employee was able to purchase an appropriate amount of the required uniform items. The
procurement evatuation team completed the due diligence necessary to respond to this inguiry.
The approved allowance amount is $450/year for Operators and Supervisors and $250/year for
Customer Service Repraesentatives. The allowance that employees receive is subject to the
collective bargaining process and has not changed in several labor contracts. The ATU contract
was ratified earlier this year and there was no increase negotiated for the uniform allowance, In
addition, the Authority now provides new hires with the uniform allowance a couple wesks into
the student training period so they are starting in proper uniform. In addition, the Authority has
worked with the vendor to locate other manufacturars when costs increase or they advise that
they can no longer make the specified uniform pieces. The complete pricing list, proposed by
the recommended vendor, is inciuded for review.

Please call me if you have any questions or require additional information prior to Tuesday’s
meeting.

IBT/MD
Attachment



RFP 2022-D68 Operator and Supervisor Unifarms
GREATER CLEVELANG TRANSIT AUTHORITY

image Authority, 8 brand of Workwaear Qutfitters, LLC
Carmplitte and Bast Priving PROPOSAL

ttem order  |SPEC/ WWOE & DESCRIFTION Price Conuments

froposal

ATA-001 NP 7685 Malp Brown Dress Shos 510486

RTA-D02 NPE131 Female Brown (iress Shoe 410450

RTA-UO3 MDOFC08 I Raingoat, Onerators, Yollow 510,50

R1A-G04 H52433 Woman's Four Fockat Trauser, Navy $67.75

RTA-O0% Hi243L, Iinn's 4 Pockat Trousars, Navy 567.75

RYA-QUG HE1270 Women's Shart Slacya Shitt - White, Dispatcher Plain $31.00

RIA-QGY CYL270 Women's Short Sipeye Shirt, Supervisar - White 531.00

AtAOnR V168 Women's Shart Sleeve Shirt - Blue %31.00

RTa.Q0% H31232 Men's Shart Sleeve Shirt, Dispatcher - White %31.00

RTAD CViEne Men's Short Sleeve Shirt, Supervisar - White %31.00

RTADEL V1230 Men's Shart Sleeve Shirt - Blue 531.00

RTA 12 H51169 Women's Long Sleeve Shirt, Di:pa{cher - White $35.00

ATAO13 CYV1169 Women's Long Sleeve Shirt, Supervisor - White %35.00

RTA-t114 HY1467 Wornea's Lang Sieeve Shirt — Blue " %35.00 Lok # iy actuatly CV1267 - Spec will nead to be wpdated,

RTA 015 HS1116 Men's Long Sleeve Shirt, Dizpatcher — White 535.00

ATA.016 CV1116 Men's Long Sleave Shirt, Supervisor — While 535.00

ATA017 CV1114 Men's Lotg Sleeve Shirl — Blue 535.00

ATA-D18 CY7301 Titket Punch Holder 52000

RTA-019 Cv7300 Shoulder Bag, Mravy 520,00

RTA-D20 Cy7200 Unisex Blaek Belt 524.00

RTA-GZ1 TAGOED Fertiale Navy Crossover Tie 5775

RTA-B2Z2 CV7106 Unisex Navy Bow Tie 54,50

RTA-Q23 V7104 Unisex Mavy Tlip On Tie 8795

RTA-024 V7103 Uniser Red Baw Te 54,50

RTA-025 CV7102 Famale Grey Crassover Tie 5175

RTA-026 CV7101 Limsox Gray Bow Yie 54,50 .

RTA-027 CW7100 Unisax Grey Llin Cn Tie .§7.75

RTA-028 Gy Surmmar Bajl Cap Navy, Operator $16.00

RTA-DZ9 (A F) Summer Ball Cap Navy, Supervisor 421.00

RTAQ30 CV7016 Unisex Knit Hat Navy, Operator 513.00

RTAG31 CvI025 Unisex Knit Mal Novy, Supervitor 413.00

ATA032 cvron3 U Tracper Mat Nuvy Nylon 535.00

RTA033 CV7000 Winter Ball Cap Navy, RTA 516.00

B¥A.-034 CV7005 Winter Balt Cap Navy, Suparvisor 518.50

ATAO4S V7001 Unisex Trofley Hak 565.00

RTA-036 o Unisen Electrical Hazard Safety Bagt grapgo | 3Ee thraugh CVEDOE; “"::;:Z“;::’::::i:i:"‘““ with this boot; Pricing

RTA-037 CUIE3ES Famale Black Dress Shoe $139.00 . aelling throuwgh CVED01, an:aumnzt;\;:r:;il;r:'lit;::ﬂud with this shog; Pricing

KTA-018 CUB35A Male Black bress Shea élﬁﬁ.ﬂﬂ selling through CYESDD; anytntav:red wilf b?ﬂ]led with this shoe; Pricing

sama for bath shoes

RTA.O3Y V5004 Unizex Medium Blue Opatater Poig 527.00

R1A.Q30 CVa00S Unizex White Supervisor Palo 52100

RTA-DE) CVAN0E Unisex White Trainer / Dispateh Polo 527.00

RTA{042 CVEDOR Unisex Navy Operator Turtleneck 528.00

RIA-043 Cyvhnad Unizsex White Superviser Turtieneck 528.00

RTA-044 cvhoil Unisex Sweater Vest Navy, Operatar 44000

RTA-04% Cykngdl Uinjsax Sweater Vet Navy, Supervisor RA0.00

HAYA-048 CuBtn Unisex Zip Front Sweater Navy, Operator 45800 .

RYA-047 EVEO0 Unisox Zip Front Sweater Navy, Supervisas . 45B.00 -

RTA-D4B cvagne Male Blazer Navy, Supervisar - $170.00

RTA-D49 EVagnT Female Blazer Novy Supervisar BY7000 .

RTA-050 CvAncd Wafe Biazer Navy Operatler 817000 -

RTA-51 L4005 Fomale Blazer Navy Operator 417000

RTA-DhZ L0002 Male Taslored Vest Navy

RTA-053 LCyanod Female Tailorad Vest Mavy

RTA-054 LV3I01s Unisex Basaball lackat Mavy

RTA-055 V3014 Unlsex Revarsible Hi-Vis fackat Supervisor .

ATA-056 V3oL Unisex Reversidle Hi-vis Jacket Operator 514300

RTA-057 CY3nLn U Double Braasted Top Coat Supervisor 620500




RTA-O58 cvanda U Couble Breasted Top Cont Operator $2.05,DO
RTA-D53 V3007 U, Hi-Vis Rainceat Suparvisar 424,40
RTA-O&0 V3001 Unisex Navy Heavyweight Hooded Parka, Operatar $B{!,DO
ATA-0GY {3002 Unisex Nawy Heavyweight Hooded Parka, Supervisor $BS.OD
RTA-0G2 cyltoos Female Skirt Navy S58,00
ATA-063 cvi101n Unisex Windshirt Navy, Operator 542,75
RTA-064 CV1020 Unisex Windshirt Navy, Supervisor 542,73
RTA-QE5 cyvitoza Trolley Operator Tux Shirt White, Male $2‘,—!.UO
RTA-OGEB £Y10038 Tralley Dpcrntnr Tux Shirt White, Female $23.DB




Farm 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22 "
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
2022-100
CONTRACT: OPERATOR AND SUPERVISOR UNIFORMS Date:

VENDOR: WORKWEAR QUTFITTERS, LLC

November 10, 2022
tnitiator: Labor and

AMOUNT:  NTE $1,500,000.00 FOR THREE YEARS WITH TWO, Employee Relations

ONE-YEAR OPTIONS NTE $500,000.00 EACH PER YEAR
FOR TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT NTE $2,500,000.00

ACTION REQUEST:
H Approval [ Review/Comment [ Information Only 1 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

50

PURPQSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Authority to enter into a contract for the
furnishing of uniform services for the Authority’s coach, paratransit and rail operators, Service
Quality supervisors, dispatchers, and Customer Service representatives, as required under the
Amalgamated Transit Union (“ATU") contract, for a period of three years with two, one-year
options.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: This contract is needed for the furnishing of uniforms for the
Authority's coach, paratransit and rail operators, Service Quality supervisors, dispatchers, and
Customer Service representatives, These 1,200 employees are required to wear approved
uniform items during the performance of their job duties. The operators and supervisors are
currently entitied to a clothing allowance of $450.00 per person par year. Customer Service
representatives receive a $250.00 clothing allowance. These services shall include, but are
not limited to, providing all uniform items and alterations, if necessary; maintaining a sfore
location convenient for all operators and supervisors; and record keeping and billings to
support GCRTA's audit needs and monitoring of the employee uniform allowances.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND. The Request for Proposals (‘RFP") was posted on the
GCRTA Procurement web site and advertised in the local newspapers. Notifications of the
solicitation were sent to four potential proposers. Twenty-four interested parties downloaded
the solicitation and one responded on August 5, 2022 After evaluation by a panel of Authority
employees in accordance with established Procurement Department policies and procedures,
the proposal of Workwear Qutfitters, LLC was determined to be in the best interest of the
Authority. A cost analysis has been performed and the Procurement Department has
determined the negotiated not to exceed amount of $2,500,000.00 to be fair and reasonable to
the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Al Affirmative Action requirements have been
met, A 0% DBE goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of certified DBE

firms.

POLICY IMPACT. Does not apply.




Staff Surmmary & Comments
Operator and Supetvisor Uniforms 2022-100
Page 2

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: The procurement shall be funded from the General Fund, and Various

Department budgets, in an estimated amount not to excead $1,500,000.00 for the base three
years with two, one-year options in an amount not to exceed $500,000.00 for each option
year, for a total contract amount not to exceed $2,500,000.00 for the five-year period, based
upon a current total of 1,200 eligible employees. The reimbursable clothing allowance of
$450.00 per operator and/or supervisor and $250.00 per customer service representative is
set per the ATU agreement.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer, Rejection of this award would prevent operators,

8.0

8.0

supervisors, and customer service representatives from obtaining proper uniform items and
maintaining a professional appearance,

RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the
November 1, 2022 Organizational Services and Performance Monitoring Committee meeting.
It is recommended that the proposal from Workwear Qutfitters, LL.C be accepted and the
resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a

contract.
ATTACHMENTS: None.
Recommended and certified as appropriate to the

avaitability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

Général Manager, Chief Exectitive Officder—"

o




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-100

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2022-068 WITH WORKWEAR OUTFITTERS,
LLC FOR THE FURNISHING OF OPERATOR AND SUPERVISOR UNIFORM
SERVICES FOR A PERIOD OF THREE YEARS, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO
EXCEED $1,500,000.00, WITH TWO, ONE-YEAR OPTIONS IN AN AMOUNT
NOT TO EXCEED $500,000.00 PER YEAR, FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2,500,000.00 FOR A PERIOD OF FIVE YEARS
(GENERAL FUND, VARIQUS DEPARTMENT BUDGETS)

WHEREAS, the Authority requires that operators, supervisors and customer service
representatives maintain a professional image and wear GCRTA approved uniform items; and

WHEREAS, the proposal of Workwear Quitfitters, LLC located at 545 Marriott Drive,
Nashville, TN 37214, for the furnishing of Operator and Supervisor Uniform Services for a
period of three years with two, one-year options was received on Augusi 5, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has a current total of 1,200 employees eligible for a maximum
annual clothing allowance of $450.00 under the Amalgamated Transit Union ("ATU") contract
with the Authority, for an estimated contract amount not to exceed $1,500,000.00 for the base
three years and in an estimated amount not to exceed $500,000.00 per option year, for a total
estimated contract amount not to exceed $2,500,000.00 for the five-year period; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the proposal from
Workwear Qutfitters, LLC to furnish Operator and Supervisor Uniform Services to be in the best
interest of the Authority and recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

‘ NOW, THEREFORE, BE iIT RESQLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohia;

Section 1. That the offer of Workwear Qutfitters, LLC for the furnishing of Operator and
Supervisor Uniform Services for a period of three years with two, one-year options, be and the
same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Workwear Outfitters, LLC for said services
for a period of three years with authority to exercise both option years.

Section 3. That said contract shall be payable from the General Fund, and Varicus
Department budgets, in an estimated amount not to exceed $1,500,000.00 for the base three
years, with two, one-year options in an estimated amount not to exceed $500,000.00 per year,
for a total estimated contract amount not to exceed $2,500,000.00 for the five-year period,
based upon a current total of 1,200 eligible employees. The reimbursable clothing allowance of
$450.00 per operator and/or supervisor and $250.00 per customer service representative is set
per the ATU agreement.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation to the Authority
contingent upon fulure funding, compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda
thereto, if any, the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees, bonding and
insurance requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the
Authority.



Resolution No. 2022-100
Page 2

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Workwear Qutfitters, LLC will attempt to exceed the 0% DBE goal assigned to this

procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: November 15, 2022

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Greater Cleveland interoffice Memo
Regional Transit Authority

To: Rev. Charles . Lucas, President
and Members, Board of Trustees
oy iR g
From: fndia .. Birdsong Terry };ﬂﬁ{:ﬁwﬁ& Jj%,f) /z{ ol i
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer /y
Date: MNovember 11, 2022
Subject; Ratification and Time Extension to Contract No, 2014-054, Telecommunications
Services.

At the November 15, 2022 Board of Trustees ("BOT") meeting, staff will seek approval for the
ratification and time extension to Contract No. 2014-054, Telecommunication Services.

The need for this resolution was discussed by staff during the Internal Audit Quarterly Reports
presented to the Board of Trustees at both the August 16, 2022 and November 3, 2022 Audit,
Safety compliance and Real Estate Committee meetings. Based on the racommendations
included in the November 3, 2022 Internal Audit Report, a resclution is included in your board
package requesting this approval. More details supporting the need for this ratification and time
extension are included in Section 2.0 of the Staff Summary and Comments section of the
resolution. This contract was originally awarded as a result of a competitive procurement from
the State of Ohio, Department of Administrative Services, Cooperative Purchasing Program.

In order to finalize the transition of remaining services from this Contract to the 2021 agreement
with AT&T, this Resolution will authorize the General Manager's change order authority be
reset.

Please call me if you have any questions or require additional information prior to Tuesday's
meeting.

IBT/MD
Attachment



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: RATIFICATION AND TIME EXTENSION TO CONTRACT | 2022-101 |
NO. 2014-054, TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES Date:
November 10, 2022

VENDOR:  AT&T CORPORATION
AMOUNT:  NTE $352,627.00 FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT Innovation and

Initiator:

NTE $2,695,157.00 Technology

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval [} Review/Comment [ Information Only [ Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Authority to ratify and extend Contract No, 2014-
054, Telecommunications Services, with AT&T Caorporation.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority maintains a substantial voice and data
network that connects various Authority facilities and systems and allows customers {o access
the Authority’s public-facing services, such as the RTAnswerline and the riderta.com website.
The network is comprised of private infrastructure and supplemented by leased
telecommunications services, including, but not limited to, analog telephone service, local and
long-distance service, off-premise extensions for emergency call boxes, direct inward-dial
service, point-to-peint data circuits, internet service, and metro-ethernet.

The ratification of $352,627.00 is for various telecommunications services already performed.
These services included critical network and voice connectivity between RTA facilities, as welt
as Internet access and public-facing services. Each of these services had unique tarm
commitments commencing at their respective installation dates. As a result, individual services
were not co-terminus. Over the course of the agreement, many individua! services had to be
extended to maintain critical network and voice connectivity, which allowed the Authority to
maintain daily operations.

The time extension will extend the current contract term through February 28, 2023. The
contract extension is necessary to prevent service interruptions while transitioning the
remaining services to Contract No. 2021-152, AT&T Switched Ethernet On-Demand Services,

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND. The Authority has been utilizing AT&T telecommunications
services and connectivity since 2004. On June 10, 2014, the Board of Trustees, via Resolution
No. 2014-04, authorized Contract No. 2014-054 for Telecommunications Services with AT&T

Corporation for a period of 5 years,

As telecommunications technology has evolved, the Authority entered into Contract No., 2021-
152, Switched Ethernet On-Demand Sarvices, with AT&T Corporation for a period of three
years via Resolution No. 2021-085. This technology upgrade was required because AT&T
discontinued the Authority's existing technology products. AT&T Switched Ethernet On-
Demand is the replacement and updated technology. Certain remaining services on Contract
No. 2014-054, Telecommunications Services, were transitioned to Contract No. 2021-152,
AT&T Switched Ethernet On-Demand Services, via Change Order No. 1 in the amount of
$77,912.00. Change QOrder No. 1 was approved by the Change Order Commitiee on October
7, 2022, and approved by the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer on October 13, 2022,
This contract extension allows the remaining services under Contract No. 2014-04 to be
transitioned to Contract No. 2021-152 while maintaining connectivity.



Staff Summary & Comments )
ATET Ratification and Time Extension 2022-101
Page 2

4.0

2.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

A cost analysis has been performed, and the Procurement Department has determined that
the pricing provided by AT&T Corporation is fair and reasonable for the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/ DBE BACKGROUND: The Office of Business Development doas not
conduct Affirmative Action reviews or establish goals on procurements included in the State
Cooperative Purchasing program. Contract No. 2014-054 was the result of a cooperative
procurement from the State of Ohio, Department of Administrative Services, Cooperative
Purchasing Program.

FOLICY {MPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: The ratification in the amount of $352,627.00 will be funded through the
General Fund, Innovation and Technology Departrnent budget, for a total contract amount not

to exceed $2 695 157.00.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer, Rejection of this offer could result in substantial disruption
to daily operations that rely on this connectivity.

RECOMMENDATION: ltis recommended that this ratification and time extension be accepted
and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to modify
the contract.

ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

s e
P e i - el

eneral Manager, & ief-Executive-Officer

(5



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-101

AUTHORIZING A RATIFICATION AND TiIiME EXTENSION TO CONTRACT NO. 2014-
054 WITH AT&T CORPORATION FOR TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, IN AN
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $352,627.00, FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT NOT
TO EXCEED $2,695,157.00 (GENERAL FUND, INNOVATION & TECHNOLOGY
DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority identified the need to continue felecommunications services
and connectivity; and

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 2014-047, the Board of Trustees authorized a contract for
Telecommunications Services with AT&T Corperation for a period of five years, in an amount
not to excead $2,342,530.00; and

WHEREAS, the Authority required additional services in the amount of $352 627.00,
which was beyond the authorized contract amount, in order to continue telecommunications
services and conneclivity; and

WHEREAS, the Authority is requesting a contract price ratification of $352 627.00 for
services received under Contract No. 2014-054; and

WHEREAS, the Authorily is also requesting a contract extension through February 28,
2023, which will allow the Authority to close out all remaining deliverables under Contract No.
2014-054 by the end of February 2023; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer has deemed these actions to
be in the best interest of the Authority, price and all factors considered, and recommends
acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustess.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the amount of $352,627.00 for services under Contract No. 2014-054,
which were beyond the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer's change order authority, is
hereby ratified.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to execute a time extension through February 28, 2023 for Contract
No. 2014-054 with AT&T Corporation.

Section 3. This ratification in the amount of $352,627.00 wilt be funded through the
General Fund, Innovation and Technology Department budget, for a total contract amount not to
exceed $2,695,157.00.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon funding for future years, compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and
Addenda, if any, the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees, bonding and
insurance requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the
Authority.



Resolution No. 2022-101
Page 2

Section 3, That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer's change order authority
is reinstated in its entirety.

Section 6. That this resciution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: November 15, 2022
President

Atiest:

Secretary-Treasurer



i Greater Cleveland Interoffice Metmo
Regional Transit Authority

To: Rey, Charles P. Lucas, President
and Members, Board of Trustees

From: India L. Birdsong Terry M,,.ﬂ“‘“”m“\}
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer /ﬁ:“’

Date:  November 10, 2022

Subject: Increase the appropriation to the Insurance Fund

For the November 15, 2022 Qperational Planning & Infrastructure Committee meeting, staff will
submit a resolution to increase the appropriation in the insurance Fund. The Authority
maintaing an Insurance Fund to protect the Autharity against catastrophic or extraordinary
losses. The insurance Fund must maintain a $5 million balance, based upon the
recommendation from the Authority's Director of Risk Management. The insurance premium
and settlements of significant claims were reached after the preparation of the Fiscal Year (FY)
2022 Budget and were higher than budgeted. An increase of $500,000 in the appropriation of
the Insurance Fund must be made to pay the insurance premiums and claims settlemants.

Flease call me if you have any questions or require additional information prior to Tuesday’s
meeting.

ILB/kms



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
_01-12-22 _— )
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No
2022-102
TG AMEND THE FISCAL YEAR 2022 REVENUES AND Date:

2022-068, AND 2022-083 TO PROVIDE FOR AN INCREASE IN THE

APPROPRIATIONS, AS ADOPTED IN RESOLUTION NOS. 2021112, | November 10, 2022

APPROPRIATION IN THE INSURANGE FUND IN THE AMOUNT OF Initiator: Office of
$500,000 Management &
Budget

ACTION REQUEST:
& Approval [ Review/Comment I Information Only {1 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0

50

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will authorize an amendment to increase the appropriations
for the Fiscal Year (FY) 2022 Budget for the expenditures under the Insurance Fund.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Insurance Fund provides resources to protect the
Authority against catastrophic or extraordinary losses. The insurance premiums and claims
settlements during FY 2022 have been higher than initially budgeted. The proposed increase
of $500,000 in the appropriation to the Insurance Fund will cover the anticipated insurance
premiums and claims settlements and maintain the recommended ending balance. The 2022
Budget was approved by the Board of Trustees through Resolution No. 2021-112 on
Daecember 21, 2021, and amended through Resolution Nos. 2022-068 on July 26, 2022, and
through 2022-083 on August 23, 2022,

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: The proposed amendment will increase the appropriation to the Insurance
Fund, as established by Reselution Nos, 2021-112, 2022-068, and 2022-083.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: The proposed amendment will increase the appropriation to the
tnsurance Fund by $500,000, from the current appropriation of $2,993,000, to the amended
appropriation of $3,493,000.

ALTERNATIVES: Modify or not approve the budget amendment as proposed. This will
prevent the Authority from paying premiums and claim settlements, which could have negative
legal and financial consequences,

RECOMMENDATION: it is recommended that the Board approve the amendment to the FY
2022 budget to increase the appropriation in the Insurance Fund by $500,000.

ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legat form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

S e

General Manager, Chisf-EXecutivectificer




RESOLUTHON NO. 2022-102

TO AMEND THE FISCAL YEAR 2022 REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS, AS
ADOPTED IN RESOLUTION NOS. 2021-112, 2022-068, AND 2022-083, TO
PROVIDE FOR AN INCREASE IN THE APPROPRIATION IN THE INSURANCE
FUND IN THE AMOUNT OF $500,000

WHEREAS, the Authority maintains an Insurance Fund to protect the Authority against
catastrophic or extraordinary losses, and must maintain 2 minimum balance based on the
recommendation of the Director of Risk Management; and

WHEREAS, the insurance premiums and claims settlements during FY 2022 have been
higher than initially budgeted; and

WHEREAS, an increase in the appropriation of $500,000 must be made to pay the
insurance premiums and claim setflements from the Insurance Fund and maintain the
recommended ending balance; and

WHEREAS, funds for this action are budgeted in the Insurance Fund; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees adopted the 2022 Appropriation Budget on December
21, 2021 through Resolution No. 2021-112, and amended through Resolution Nos. 2022-068 on
July 26, 2022, and 2022-083 on August 23, 2022 and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Authority to increase the appropriation in the
Insurance Fund by $500,000 for the payment of insurance premiums and claims settlements.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Chio:

Section 1. That the 2022 Appropriation Budget is hereby amended as follows:
INSURANCE FUND

Current 2022 Amended 2022
Appropriation  Appropriation  Increase

22 Risk Management
Premium & Claims Outlay $2,893,000 $3,493,000 $500,000

Section 2. That all other provisions of Resolution Nos, 2021-112, 2022-068, and 2022-
083, not otherwise amended, shall remain in full force and effect,

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: November 15, 2022
President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



B Greater Cleveland Interoffice Memo
Regional Transit Authority

To: Rev. Charles P. Lucas, President
and Members, Board of Trustees
Y i - ! ’
From: india L. Birdsong Terry 9’ // wa@’&, ﬁ\ /)..J /-l"d;-i" (Y
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer o :7
Date: November 11, 2022
Subject. Authorization to Execute Purchase and Sale Agreement for

15583 Brookpark Road, Brookpark, OH

Staff seeks authorization to execute the Purchase and Sale Agreement and other related
documents for the acquisition of 15583 Brookpark Road.

In a non-binding Letter of Intent, GCRTA made an offer of $1,450,000.00 on August 16, 2022
Mutltiple competing offers necessitated that GCRTA increase its offer to $1,500,000.00, which
was accepted by the seller. GCRTA has completed its due diligence and received an independent
appraisal confirming the fair market value of the purchase price.

The Purchase and Sale Agreement is prepared for execution at a price of $1,500,000.00.
Cancurrence from the FTA is a required condition of closing.

To complete the acauisition of this property in 2022, funds have been amended into the Capital
Improvements Budget Program for 2022. GCRTA will fund the purchase with 100% local funds
unless a federal grant is amended to cover a portion of the purchase price.

Please call me if you have any questions or require additional information prior to Tuesday's
Board meeting.

IBJR



Farm 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:

CONTRACT: AUTHORIZING A PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT | Date:

SELLER: XAPC, CO.
AMOUNT:  $1,500,000.00

2022-103

FOR THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT |y ber 10. 2022
AUTHORITY TO ACQUIRE 15583 BROOKPARK ROAD, [t st
BROOK PARK, OHIQ, CUYAHOGA COUNTY Inltlator:‘ngrammmg
PERMANENT PARCEL NUMBER 343-11-004 & Planning

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval 11 Review/Comment {1 Irformation Only 1 Other
1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution seeks board approval of a purchase and sale agreement

2.0

3.0
4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

(Attachment A) with XAPC, Co, for the proposed purchase by the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Autharity (GCRTA) of the real estate located at 15583 Brookpark Road, Brook Park,
OH 44142, Cuyahoga County Permanent Parcel Number 343-11-004, for the sum of
$1,500,000.00.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The property would be purchased to be utilized primarity as
the new west side location for the Rail Facilities Maintenance group to service the west side
rail stations and other properties along the Red Line. The purchase of property is necessitated
by the anticipated relocation of the Rail Facilities Maintenance group. The rail car replacement
program will require that the maintenance group's current space at the Brookpark Shop be

‘used instead for the testing and commissioning of the new rail cars.

A non-binding letter of intent was executed by GCRTA on August 17, 2022 and accepted by
AAPC, Co. on August 18, 2022 (Attachment B). In the subsequent weeks, GCRTA conducted
due diligence investigations regarding the property which concluded that the property was
suitable for GCRTA's intended use. The property was appraised at $1,500,000.00 by a MA!
appraiser an Qctober 12, 2022 and confirmed by review appraisal on November 8, 2022

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: The propeosed purchase and sale agreement is consistent with the Real
Estate Policies of the GCRTA. The proposed purchase is contingent upon final concurrence
from the Federal Transit Administration,

ECONOMIC IMPACT: GCRTA has deposited $10,000.00 with the escrow agent as earnest
moneay. The balance of $1,450,000.00 will be due at the closing of the transaction. The
purchase price of one million five hundred thousand dollars ($1,500,000.00) will be payable
from 100% loca! funds or from eligible grant funding as may become available,

ALTERNATIVES: Without approval for GCRTA to execute a purchase and sale agreement and
proceed to closing of the transaction, GCRTA will not be able to purchase this property.
GCRTA will need to seek another property which can accommodate the Rail Facilities
Maintenance group.



Staff Summary & Comments
Permanent Parcel Number 343-11-004 2022-103
Page 2

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the approval for GCRTA to execute the purchase
and sale agreement with XAPC, Co. and to proceed with the additional steps needed to

complete this real estate purchase transaction.

8.0 ATTACHMENTS: Attachment A — Draft Purchase and Sale Agreement
Attachment B — Letter of Intent

Recommended and certifiad as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with

the Procurement requirements.

e

‘‘‘‘‘‘



ATTACHMENT A

** DRAFT **

PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT

THIS PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT ("Agreement”) is made and entered
into between the GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY, a
political subdivision of the State of Ohio (“Purchaser”), located at 1240 West 6 Street,
Cleveland, Ohio 44113 and the XAPC, CO., fka AVALON PRECISION CASTING CO.,
an Ohio corporation, (“Seller”), located at 15583 Brookpark Road, Brook Park, Ohio
44142, entered into under the authority of Purchaser's Resolution No.
adopted , 2022, a copy of which is attached to and incorporated into this
Agreement as Exhibit A. The date of this Agreement (‘Effective Date”) shall be the last
date of execution by either of the parties.

ARTICLE 1 - PROPERTY

Seller agrees to sell, and Purchaser agrees to buy the parcel of real property and
all improvements ("Property”) located at 15583 Brookpark Road, Brook Park, Ohio 44142
comprised of 1.24 acres of real property and known as Cuyahoga County Permanent
Parcel Number 343-11-004 as outlined on Exhibit B aftached hereto and incorporated
herein, together with the buildings and improvements located thereon and all of the
appurtenances, rights, privileges, licenses, and easements belonging thereunto
("Improvements”). A legal description of the Property is attached hereto as Exhibit C.

Purchaser is purchasing:

a. All of Seller's right, title, and interest in the Properly described in Exhibit B and
Exhibit C, which are attached to and incorporated into this Agreement; and

b. Al of Geller's right, title, and interest in any Improvements affixed to the Property;
and

c. Allrighis, privileges, entitlements, easements, and appurtenances pertaining to the
Property and Improvements, including any right, title, and interest of Seller in and
to adjacent streets, alleys, or rights-of-way.

Seller acknowledges that the sale of the Property is subject to approval by the Federal
Transit Administration and Purchaser's Board of Trustees (the "Required Approvals™).
Seller acknowledges that this Agreement will not take effect until the Required Approvals
OCCUT.

ARTICLE 2 -~ PURCHASE PRICE AND EARNEST MONEY

A. The total purchase price for the Property (*Purchase Price”) shall be One Million
Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,500,000.00) payable in cash, or immediately
available funds, on the closing date (the "Closing Date”). On or before the Closing



Date, Purchaser shall deposit the Purchase Price in escrow with Northern Title
Agency, Inc. ("Escrow Agent’ and “Title Company”), 19545 Center Ridge Road,
Rocky River, Ohio 44116 Attention: Deborah S. Furry, President / General
Counsel, (Phone:440-333-8118 X203) debfurry@northerntitie.com.

B. Purchaser shall deposit Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) into an escrow
account with the Escrow Agent as earnest money (“Earnest Money"), to be
credited against the Purchase Price at Closing. The Earnest Money shall be
deposited into a federally insured interest-bearing account, with all interest
accruing to Purchaser unless otherwise provided herein. Said earnest money shall
only be returned to the Purchaser if; (1) the Purchaser does not attain the Required
Appravals; (2) Seller does not satisfactorily resolve an objection to a title exception,
pursuant to Article 4.C.(1), below; (3) Seller does not obtain the release or
maodification of any oil or gas leases affecting the Property, pursuant to Article 4.D.
below; or (4) Purchaser terminates the transaction pursuant to Arlicle 5. below. If
this transaction is nof consummated for any other reason, the earnest money shall
be disbursed to the Seller as the sole liquidated damages in the event Purchaser
does not close on the Property.

ARTICLE 3 ~ PURCHASER’S INSPECTIONS / SELLER’S DELIVERIES

A. Seller shall arrange access for Purchaser during normal business hours, to all
areas of the Property to enable Purchaser and its agents to enter the Property and
to conduct inspections, tests, borings, or surveys. In the event that this transaction
does not close by the Closing Date, then the Purchaser, upon demand by Seller,
shall repair any damage to the Property caused by the Purchaser's investigation,
tests and/or studies.

B. The foregoing provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

C. Seller shall promptly deliver to Purchaser the following documents or information
that are within Seller's possession or control {"Seller's Deliveries”):

1. Seller's current title policy if ane exists; and

2. Any environmental or geotechnical reports, wetlands study, tree studies
and/or surveys, wetlands documentation, flood plain, drainage, road
improvement, utility construction or other documents perfaining to the
condition of the Property in the custody and control of the Seller; and

3. The identity of any party who has any environmental or geotechnical
reports, wetlands study, ftree studies and/or surveys, wellands
documentation, flood plain, drainage, road improvement, utility construction
or other documents pertaining to the condition of the Property that is not in
the possession or control of Seller, fo the extent that the identity of such
party is known to Seller; and

4. Any existing survey of the Property; and



5. Any additional documents identified on Schedule 1 to the Letter of Intent
between the parties dated August 17, 2022,

Selier shall use commercially reasonable efforts to secure the foregoing Seller's
Deliveries from all vendors who have prepared them on behalf of Seller. In the event it is
determined during the Due Diligence Period (as defined in Article 5) that Seller has not
timely furnished any of the above Seller's Deliveries after written notice by Purchaser to
Seller identifying the specific document or information Purchaser asserts was not timely
furnished, the Due Diligence Period shall be extended by the number of days such
delivery was delayed from the date of the written notice.

ARTICLE 4 - TITLE TO PREMISES

A. Seller shall convey insurable (with ail standard exceptions deleted provided
Purchaser obtains an acceptable Survey as defined herein) and marketable title to
the Property to Purchaser by Limited Warranty Deed, to be prepared by Seller and
subject to Purchaser's approval,

B. Seller shall obtain a commitment ("Cormmitment”) issued by Escrow Agent for an
ALTA Owner's Policy of Title Insurance Form 2021 (“Title Policy”) in an amount
equal to the Purchase Price showing title to the Property in Seller and naming
FPurchaser as the proposed insured. The Commitment shall be accompanied by
copies of all documents listed as exceptions to title or otherwise affecting title to
the Property. Purchaser may obtain an ALTA survey (“Survey"} prior to the
expiration of the initial Approval Period (as defined in Article 5), which shows the
location of the Property and ali easements, rights of way and other matters
contained in the Schedule B exceptions to the Commitment that are capable of
being shown aon the Survey (the Survey and all documents evidencing exceptions
to title are hereinafter referred to as the “Related Documents”).

C. Purchaser shall have thirty (30) days after receipt of the Commitment and Related
Documents to review title to the Property. If Purchaser notifies Seller that it does
not approve of any title exceptions within said thirty (30) day period, Seller shall
then have thirty (30) days from such notice in which to resolve such objections and
shall undertake to do so in good faith but shall not be required to do so except for
the discharge at Closing of Liens as defined below. If Seller does not satisfactorily
resolve such objections, which it shall undertake in good faith, within thirty (30)
days, then Purchaser, at its option, may either: (i) terminate this Agreement within
fifteen (15) days from receipt of Seller's notice that such objection has not been
resolved, in which event the Earnest Money and all interest shall be paid to
Purchaser, Seller shall pay escrow and title charges incurred to date, and
thereupon the parties shall be relieved of all further obligations hereunder; or, (ii)
watve the objection and accept title at Closing with such objection, without any
reduction in the Purchase Price and such objections then being deemed additional
Permitted Exceptions. Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement to
the contrary, Purchaser shall not be required to give Seller notice to cure or remove
any mortgage lien, security interest, judgment, personal property tax, mechanics



or other lien capable of cure by payment of a liquidated sum (a “Lien”), as
Purchaser shall be deemed to have objected to such Liens and Seller shail be
unconditionally obligated, at its expense, to cause such Liens to be released of
record on or before the Closing Date. Although Purchaser is given additional days
for the Due Diligence Period and Approval Period (see Section 5 below),
Purchaser may not object to title exceptions more than thirty (30) days after receipt
of the Commitment and Related Documents.

D. If there are oil or gas leases affecting the Property (“Oil/Gas Leases”), and
Purchaser objects to them, Seller covenanis and agrees, without cost to
Purchaser, to use its best efforts to either: (i) cause the Qil/Gas Leases to be
reieased of record insofar as they pertain to the Property; or (i) cause the Qil/Gas
Leases to be modified of record such that no eniry upon the surface of the Property
is permissible by the lessees thereunder and no slant drilling from fands adjacent
to the Property will be permissible; provided, however, that the lessees under the
OillGas Leases may include the land for purposes of unitization. In the event such
best efforts on the part of Seller are not successful within ninety (90) days after
receipt of Purchaser's notice objecting to them, then, unless Purchaser waives any
objections to the status of the Qil/Gas Leases or the parties otherwise agree, in
writing, Purchaser may terminate this Agreement and (i) all Earnest Money shall
be returned to Purchaser, (ii) Seller shall pay all Escrow costs incutred to date;
and (iii} neither parly shall have any other obligation with respect to this
Agreement.

E. From and after the date of execution of this Agreement by Seller, Seller shall not;

1. Permit any third party to adversely affect Seller's title to the Property and
will not permit any new or additional exceptions to title to be created except
those that will be removed by Seller, at Seller's sole cost and expense, at
or prior to the Closing Date; or

2. Enter into any contracts or agreements pertaining to the Praperty that are
net cancelabte upon thirty (30) days’ notice.

ARTICLE § ~ CLOSING DATE / DUE DILIGENCE & APPROVAL PERIODS /
CONDITIONS

A. The Closing Date shall be thirty (30) days after expiration of Purchaset's Approvatl
Period as defined in this Article 5, Section C below. Seller shall deliver the Property
to Purchaser at Closing free and clear of all tenancies, Liens and other
encumbrances.

B. Seller and Purchaser acknowledge that as of the dale of execution of this
Agreement, Seller has provided Purchaser with Seller's Deliveries of the due
diligence items in Seller's possession or control. Purchaser shall have a forty-five
(45) day due diligence period {"Due Diligence Period") beginning on the
Purchaser's receipt of the Seller's Deliveries, during which Purchaser may



investigate and evaluate the potential of the Property for the Purchaser's desired
uses, including but not limited to zoning, municipal approvals, environmental
issues, geotechnical issues and engineering studies, Purchaser shall diligently
and in good faith pursue such investigation and evaluation during the Due
Diligence Period. If during the Due Diligence Period Purchaser determines that,
for any reason, the Property is not suitable, Purchaser may in its sole discretion,
terminate this transaction and (i) thereupon this Agreement shall be null and void
and neither party shall have any further rights or obligations hereunder, except for
those rights and obligations that, by their terms, expressly survive any such
termination, and (ii) Purchaser's Earnest Money shall be returned to Purchaser,
but Purchaser shall pay all escrow and title charges incurred to date. In the event
Purchaser does not elect to terminate this transaction prior to the end of the Due
Diligence Period, Purchaser shall be deemed to have waived its right to terminate
based on environmental issues, geotechnical issues and engineering studies.

. Purchaser shall have a sixty (60) day approval period (“Approval Period”)
beginning on the execution of the Agreement (assuming Purchaser is proceeding
with the purchase) in which to obtain the Required Approvals of the purchase by
the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority Board of Trustees and the
concurrence of the FTA. This Approval Period may be extended by mutual
agreement,

. Prior to the expiration of the Due Diligence Period, Purchaser shall have the right
to terminate this Agreement, in its sole discretion, by providing written notice of
termination to Seller, and (i) thereupon this Agraement shall be null and void and
neither party shall have any further rights or obligations hereunder, except for
those rights and obligations that, by their terms, expressly survive any such
termination, and (ii} Purchaser's karnest Money shall be returned to Purchaser,
but Purchaser shall pay all escrow and title charges incurred to date.

. In the interest of expediting this transaction, the Parties may commence the due
diligence process or other components of the contemplated transaction prior to
execution of this Agreament. The status of progress on the due diligence process
or other components of the transaction will be described in Exhibit D, attached
hereto.

ARTICLE 6 - TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS

As of the date of Closing, the Escrow Agent shall prorate between Seller and

Purchaser all real estate taxes (“Taxes”) and any general and special assessments levied
against the Property according to the most recent tax bill for the Property. Such proration

shall be final.

ARTICLE 7 — REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS

A. As a material inducement for Purchaser {o enter into this Agreement, Seller

represents, warrants and covenants as follows:



1. Fee simpie ownership of the Property is vested solely in Seller and no other
party has an interest in the Property, the Property shall be delivered at
Closing free and clear of all tenancies, Liens or other encumbrances;

2. No legal actions or administrative proceedings of any type (including
condemnation or similar proceedings) are pending or (to the best of Seller's
actual knowledge) contemplated against the Property;

3. Subject to the limitations set forth in Article 2 above, and subject to receipt
of the Required Approvals, Seller has all necessary power and authority to
execute this Agreement, perform all of its obligations hereunder and convey
the Property;

4. Seller has no knowiedge and has not received notice of any violations of
any law, statue, ordinance, or other governmental reguiaticn by or affecting
the Property; and

5. On the Closing Date there will be no outstanding contracts made by Seller
for any Improvements to the Property that have not been fully paid for and
Seller shall cause to be discharged all mechanics or materiaimen’s liens
arising from any labor or materials furnished to the Property prior to the
Closing Date.

B. The representations and warranties set forth in Article 7.A. are true and correct on
the Effective Date, shall be true and correct on the Closing Date, and shall survive
the Closing.

C. Except as otherwise expressly set forth herein, the Purchaser acknowledges that
it is relying upon its own investigations, tests and studies with respect to the
condition, enviranmental or otherwise of the Property and agrees to accept the
Property in its “as is, where is, with all faults” condition on the Closing Date, in
accordance with Article 3.

ARTICLE 8 — CLOSING AND ESCROW CHARGES

A_ At such time as the Escrow Agent has in its possession all funds representing the
Purchase Price and all documents required from Purchaser and Seller, Escrow
Agent shall file the Deed for record. The escrow shall be subject to the Escrow
Agent's standard conditions of acceptance, except that if there is any conflict or
inconsistency between the Escrow Agent's standard conditions and the terms and
provisions of this Agreement, the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall
govern,

B. The Escrow Agent shall deliver to Purchaser the Deed, Purchaser's title insurance
policy, other documents due Purchaser, and all funds remaining to the credit of
Purchaser after charging Purchaser with:

1. One-haif (1/2) of the cost of the issuance of the Owner's policy,



3.

4,

the cost of any special endorsements to the Qwner's policy required by
Purchaser;

One-half (1/2) of the escrow fee; and

Amounts due Seller by reason of prorations hereunder.

C. The Escrow Agent shall deliver to Seller the balance of the funds in its possession
to the credit of Seller after charging Seller and deducting from such funds:

1.
2.
3.

7.

8.

The cost of preparing and recording the Deed;
The cost of issuance of the title commitment;
One-half (1/2) of the cost of issuance of the Owner's policy;

The cost of the Transfer Tax and any other documentary stamps or transfer
or conveyance fees;

Any amounts that are required to satisfy any outstanding Liens;
One-half (1/2) of the escrow fee;
Amounts due Purchaser by reason of prorations hereunder, and

The brokers’ commissions.

ARTICLE 9 - BROKER

Purchaser and Seller warrant and represent each to the other that neither has dealt with
any real estate broker or finder in connection with this transaction except Eliot Kijewski,
SIOR of CRESCO Real Estate, who represented Seller, and who will be paid a sales
commission by the Seller at Closing pursuant {0 a separate agreement.

ARTICLE 10 - REMEDIES

A If Seller breaches any of its covenanis, agreemenis, representations, or
warranties, then provided such breach has not been cured within thirty (30) days
after written notice thereof, Purchaser may declare this Agreement terminated and
all Earnest Money shall be returned to Purchaser, all Escrow Fees shall be paid
by Seller and thereafter the parties shall be released of all further liability hereunder
except those rights or obligations specifically identified in this Agreement as
surviving the termination of this Agreement.

B. Inthe event Purchaser defaults in its obligations and provided such default has not
been cured within thirty (30) days after written notice thereof, then this Agreement
shall terminate and Purchaser shall pay all title and escrow charges incurred, and
the Earnest Money, if any, shall be paid to Seller as final and liquidated damages,



the Seller specifically waiving any other legal or equitable remedy and ail other
rights and obligations of the parties hereunder shall automatically be terminated
except those rights or obligations specifically identified in this Agreement as
surviving the termination of this Agreement,

ARTICLE 11 - MISCELLANEQUS

A. This instrument constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto with
respect to the transaction herein contemplated and shall not be modified unless in
writing and signed by all parties hereto.

B. Any notice required hereunder shall be deemed duly given upon receipt or refusal
if delivered personally, sent by national overnight courier, mailed by registered or
certified United States Mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid or sent by
facsimile transmission (with confirmed fransmission receipt) and addressed or
transmitted as follows:

If to Seller:

Mel B. Kman

President

XAPC Co.

c/o The Kemper Company

21851 Center Ridge Road, Suite 408
Rocky River, Ohio 44116

With a copy to:

Tim Warner, Esq.
25935 Detroit Road, #200
Westlake, Ohio 44145

if to Purchaser:

The Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
1240 West 6 Street

Cleveland, Ohio 44113

Attn: General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

With a copy to:

The Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

1240 West 61 Street

Cieveland, Ohio 44113

Attn: General Counsel, Deputy General Manager for Legal Affairs



. This Agreement shalf be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties
hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns. Purchaser may not
assign its rights and obligations under this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the Selier, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.

. Each term, covenant, and condition contained herein shall remain in full force and
effect untl the same has been fully performed.

. Seller and Purchaser agree to cooperate in furtherance of this transaction and to

execute any and all documents reasonably required to consummate this
transaction. In the event of a dispute between the parties, the prevailing party shall
be entitled to reimbursement for its reasonable costs and reasonable attomeys’
fees, incurred as a result of such dispute. Seller hereby authorizes Purchaser to
apply for any necessary governmenta! approval(s) required for Purchaser's
proposed use of the Property, including zoning, provided any re-zoning shall only
be effective after Closing. ‘

. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Ohio, without giving effect to its conflict of law and rules. In case any one or mare
of the provisions contained in this Agreement shail be held to be invalid, illegal or
unenforceable in any respect for any reason, that such invalidity, illegality or
unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions of this Agreement. In the
event of any litigation between Purchaser and Seller related to this Agreement, the
inferpretation or construction thereof, or the transaction contemplated in this
Agreement, Purchaser and Seller agree to the exclusive jurisdiction thereof of the
federal and state courts located in Cuyahoga County, Ohio.

. Risk of loss to any Improvements located on the Property or to the Property shall
remain with the Seller until transfer of possession to the Purchaser which shall be
on the Closing Date. In the event of an insured loss prior to Closing, Purchaser
shall have the option of: (i) accepting the Property in its damaged condition as the
result of such insured loss and receive the Seller’s insurance proceeds together
with Seller's insurance deductible at Closing; or (ii} terminating this Agreement.

. In the computation of any period of time provided for in this Agreement or by law,
the day of the act or event from which any period of time runs shall be excluded,
and the last day of such period shall be included, unless it is a Saturday, Sunday
or legal haliday, in which case the period shall be deemed to run until the end of
the next day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday.

This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, and it shall not be
necessary that any one of the counterparts be executed by all of the parties. Each
fully or partially executed counterpart shall be deemed an original, but all such
counterparts taken together shall constitute but one and the same instrument,



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the dates set

forth helow.

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM AND
CORRECTNESS

Janet £, Burney, General Counsel
Deputy General Manager for Legal Affairs

SELLER:

XAPC, Co. fka Avalon Precision Casting
Company

By:
Mel B, Kman
President

Date: , 2022

PURCHASER;

The Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority

By:

India L. Birdsong Terry
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

Date: , 2022

10



STATE OF OHIO )
) 85
COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA )

BEFORE ME:, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, did personally appear the
above-named XAPC, Co., an Ohio corporation, by Mel B. Kman, its President, who acknowledged
to me that he did sign the foregoeing instrument as such officer of said corporation and that the
same is his free act and deed, and that of said corporation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and official seal at
. thig day of , 2022,

]

NOTARY PUBLIC

STATE OF OHIO )
) 88
COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA )

BEFORE ME, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, did personally appear the
above-named Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority a political subdivision of the State
of Ohio, by India L. Birdsong Tery, its General Manager, Chief Executive Officer who
acknowledged to me that she did sign the foregoing instrument as such officer of said political
subdivision and that the same is her free act and deed, and that of said political subdivision.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, | have hereunto set my hand and official seal at Cleveland,
Ohio, this day of , 2022,

NOTARY PUBLIC

11



EXHIBIT A

COPY OF RESOLUTION 2022-



Date Crealed; 9M14/2522

Legend

lities

—Right Of Way

rEcipal

Cindg

— Cuyahoga County —

GIS

I1se

-

_Enterp_r__=

-
o
2
@
Q
O
2
.
g
®
Q
O
| .
o
1
0
=
8
I
>
il

=

b 3
o=
=
L
T
KQ
farl

200 Feet

100

2060

ernel mapping site and

is for seference ooty Data dayers that appear on ixés map may or may not be

This map i$ a user geaerated stafic oufpuk froen an In

se reliabie.

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE FSED FOR NAVIGATION

s

apcuraie, cuarent, ar olhe

rajection

WES_ 1584 Web Mercalor Auxiliar

B

ry Sphera




EXHIBIT

LEGAL DESCRIPTION



EXHIBIT D

STATUS OF PROGRESS ON TRANSACTION

+ Due Diligence Period was completed on October 20, 2022

» Title Commitment was received by Purchaser on November 3, 2022



ATTACHMENT B

Greater Cleveland 1240 West 6th Street
by Regional Transit Authority Cleveiand, Ohio 44113-1302
Phone; 216-566-5100

riderta.com

August 17, 2022

Mr. Eliot Kijewski, SIOR
CRESCO Real Estate

3 Bummit Park Driva, Suite 200
Claveland, Ohio 44131

Via E-Mail Delivary to; ekilpwaki@erescorealastate. com

RE: Letter of Intent for Purchase and Sale of certain real property situated in the City of
Brookpark, County of Cuyahoga, State of Ohio, and a street address of 15583
BROOKPARK RD, BROOKPARK, OH 44142; consisting of an approximately 33,490 +/- §F
building on approximately 1.24 acres of real property with a PPN of 343-11-004 together
with all tenements, hereditaments, and appurtenances thereto, and all improvements
situated thereon (collectively, the “Property”)

Dear Mr. Kijawski:

This letter will confirm the intention of the GREATER CLEVELAND REGIQNAL TRANSIT
AUTHORITY, a political subdivision of the State of Ohio, or its nominee ("Buyer") to purchase
15583 BROOKPARK RD BEROOKPARK, OH 44142 from XAPC, CQ,, fka Avalon Precision
Casting Company, ("Seller”) the owner of the above-referenced Property. The principal terms
of the Buyer's acquisition of the Property from Seller shall be as follows:

Purchase Price: The purchase price for the Property shall be One Million Five Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($1,500,000.00).

Earpest Money: An earnest money deposit $10,000.00 of the purchase price (the *Initial
Earmest Money") shall be delivered to Northern Title Agency, 18545 Canter
Ridge Road, Rocky River, OH 44116 Attn: Deborah S. Furry, President,
PH (440) 333-8118 (who shall act as escrow agent in accordance with the
terms of its standard escrow agreement} within ten (10) days of Buyer's
receipt of a fully executed original of a mutually agreeable purchase and
sale agreement memoaorializing the terms of this letter of intent. The Earhest
Money shall be fully refundable to Buyer during the Due Diligence Period,

Duea Dilinence
Documents: Within five (5) days after the full execution of a definitive purchase and sale

agreement, Seller shall deliver to Buyer copies of documents set forth on
Schedule 1 attached hereto and incorporated herein and any other reports
concerning the Property in the possession or control of Seller (the ‘Due
Diligence Documents™).




Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority

Due Diligence Period: Buyer shall have Forty-Five (45) days from Buyer's receipt of the Due

Contingencies:

Closing:

Clasing Costs:

Broker:

Confidential;

Diligence Documents (the “initial Due Dilioence Period”) to complete its due
diligance, inciuding but not limited to structure, lease, appraisals,
environmental, engineering, soil borings and geotechnical analysis,
surveys, zoning and title review and any other due diligence Buyer deems
necessary.

Buyer's obligations to close shall be conditioned upon the satisfaction, in
the Buyer's sole discretion, of the following conditions prior to the expiration
of the Due Diligence Periods: Buyer determining that the Property and all
due diligence investigations are satisfactory to Buyer, inciuding, but not
limited to; building inspection including roof, parking lot, expandability,
mechanicals, etc., environmental and soil testing when required;
concurrance from the Federal Transit Administration (FTA); and approval
of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority Board of Trustees.

"Closing” shall occur thirty (30) days after expiration of due diligance and
approval by the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority Board of
Trustees and concurrence from the FTA.

Selter shalt bear the following fees and expensas incurred in connection

with the Closing: {i) preparation and recording of the deed, {ii) the cost of

issuance of the title commitment, (i} one-talf (34) of the cost of issuance
of the owners policy, {iv} any conveyance fees, documentary stamps or

transfer taxes, and (v) ong-half (%) of the escrow fee (vi} commission of

6%.

Buyer shall bear the following fees and expanses incurred in connection
with the Clesing: (i) one-half (14} of the cost of issuance of the owners
policy, (i) the cost of any special endorsements 1o the owners policy
required by Buyer or Buyer's lender, (i) the costs of recording any
maortgage granted by Buyer, and {iv) one-half (14) of the ascrow fes.

Eliot Kijewski, SIOR, Bob Garber, SlOR, and George Pofok, CCIM-SIOR
of CRESCO Real Estate are representing the Seller. The seller shall pay a
£% fee to CRESCO LTD upon closing. Both Seller and Buyer understand
dual agency and have been provided a State of Ohio Agency Disclosure
Form

The parties wiil keep the terms and conditions of this letter of intent, the
facts of ils existence and all transactions contemplated hereby in
confidence and shall cooperate with each other regarding all press
releases and public statements concerning this transaction. Nothing set
forth herein shall prevent either party from disclosing informatton to its
professional advisors and partners, provided they agree to be bound by the



Greatar Clevetand
¥ Regional Transit Authority

confidentiality set forth herein, Nothing set forth herein shall pravent Buyer
from praducing records as required to comply with its obligations as a
public office under Ohio's Public Records Act (Ohio Revised Code
§148.43) or fulfilting its obligation as a public body to comply with Ohio's
Open Meatings Act (Ohio Rev, Code §121.22).

Expiration of Offer:  This offer shalf expire on August 22, 2022 at 5:00 pm EST.

This propesal is not, and is not intended to be, legally binding. If this proposal is acceptable to
Seller, the parties shall proceed promptly toward negotiation and execution of the definitive
purchase and sale agreement (prepared by Buyer). Except as otherwise set forth herein, anly
such definitive agreement shall legally bind Buyer and Sedler in connection with the transaction
cortamplated herein.

Sinceraly, APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM AND
CORRECTNESS:

f:’_} i W’é"MHWP

India L. Birdsong { Jan/et” E] Burney, General Cognsel VR ¥
General Manager, Chiaf BvecttiVe Officer D@%eneral Manager for Legal Affairs (1

Agreed and Accepted:

By: ‘Q_‘D %;'gg,:zs‘*\ (Et‘-ﬂE . & KMF\N)

Title: %ﬂt‘: LT, ‘

XAPC, Co., fka Avalon Precision Castings Company

Date: E /!ﬁ:lf den2. 2



Due Diligence Documents

Within five (5) days after the full execution of a definitive purchase and sale agreement, Seller shall
deliver to Buyer {that the seller has control and or knowledge of) copies of:

1.

2.

5,

6.

7.

8.

9.

Any existing title policy and survey.

All zoning, wetlands, envirenmental, structural, mechanical, and /or geological site
assessments and/or reports.

Copies of all warranties.

Copies of ali service contracts,

Property tax statements.

A copy of the tax credit application and any supporting paperwork
Copies of all maintenance files and/or logs (most-recent 3 years).

A detailed breakdown of all capital expenses incurred at the Property (most-recent 3
years).

Copies of all agreements, correspondence and files regarding zoning, assessments,
local code issues, the highway department, and any other state or focal governmental
agency.

10. Utility account numbers and vendors.

11. Any other documents and/or reports concerning the Property in the possession or

contral of Seller.

12, Environmental reports,

13. AutoCAD files or full blueprints.



RESOLUTION NQ. 2022-103

AUTHORIZING THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT
AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTQ A PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT WITH
XAPC, CO. FOR THE PURCHASE OF 15583 BROOKPARK ROAD, BROOK
PARK, OHIO, CUYAHOGA COUNTY PERMANENT PARCEL NUMBER 343-11-
004, FOR THE SUM OF $1,500,000.00

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“GCRTA") anticipates
that the Rail Facilities Maintenance group will need to relocate In order to allow for the testing of
rail vehicles as part of the railcar replacement program; and

WHEREAS, GCRTA identified the property located at 15583 Brookpark Road, Brook
Park, Ohio, Cuyahoga County Permanent Parcel Number 343-11-004, as suitable real property
to be used for the new facility for the Rail Facilities Maintenance group to service the west side
rail stations and other facilities along the Red Lineg; and

WHEREAS, GCRTA and XAPC, Co. negotiated a purchase price of $1,500,000.00 for
the property; and

WHEREAS, GCRTA has conducted appropriate due diligence investigations and
appraisals of the property, which investigations and appraisals confirmed the suitability of the
property for GCRTA's needs and the purchase price of $1,500,000.00; and

WHEREAS, completion of this real estate transaction and acquisition of this property is
contingent upon final concurrence from the Federal Transit Administration; and

WHEREAS, entering into a purchase and sale agreement with the property seller, will
allow the GCRTA to continue and finalize the transaction to purchase this real estate,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the purchase price of §1,500,000.00 is documented as fair market value
by MAI appraisal report and confirmed by a review appraisal report.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to
execute a purchase and sale agreement with the property seller in the amount of $1,500,000.00
and is further authorized to execute other documents as required to complete the real estate
transaction.

Section 3, That the purchase price shall be payable from 100% lacal funds or from
eligible grant funding as may become available.

Section 4. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted; November 15, 2022

Prasgident

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

01-12-22 ...
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:

2022-104

REMOVING CERTAIN SECTIONS FROM THE CODIFIED RULES AND Ty o
REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT Nove;mber 10. 2022

AUTHORITY AND AMENDING THE CORRESPONDING PERSONNEL

POLICIES Initiator:

Human Resources

ACTION REQUEST:

X Approval [ Review/Comment (] Information Only &) Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0

50

6.0

7.0

8.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will remove Sections 644.01 Work Week and Hours,
644.02 Compensation, 644.03 Payroll Checks, 644.04 Payroll Deductions, 644.05 Overtime
and 644.06 Call-out Policy for Exempt Employees from the Codified Rules and Regulations
{"Code") of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority as duplicative of Personnel
Policies 400,01, 400,02, 400.03, 400.04, 400.05 and 400.06, respectively. This resolution
will also amend those Personnel Policies,

DESCRIPTION/AUSTIFICATION: The Policies and Procedures of the Board of Trustees
were codified in 1989, pursuant to Resolution 1989-176. The Code Book is now
undergoing a comprehensive review and update so that the Code wili conform to the
current structure and operations of the Authority.

Human Resources provisions are located in three places: (1) the Code Book, which
provides the broad, overarching guidance for the Authaority enacted by the Board of
Trustees; (2) the Personnel Policies, which govern day-to-day operations and are approved
by the Board of Trustees and (3) the Personnel Procedures, which contain detailed
procedures that are not approved by the Board of Trustees. The proposed amendment will
remove provisions from the Code Bogk that are exact duplicates of certain Personnel
Policies and amend the affected Personnel Policies.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: Adoption of the resolution will eliminate the duplication of provisions in
the Code Book and the Personnel Policies and update the Personnel Policies.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: Does not apply.

ALTERNATIVES: Not adopting this resolution. Not adopting this resolution would leave the
same provisions in both the Code Book and the Personnel Policies and would leave the
Personnel Policies without certain clarifications,

RECOMMENDATION: This resolution was discussed at the November 1, 2022 Committee
of the Whole meeting and recommended for consideration by the full Board of Trustees. it
is recommended that this resolution be adopted.




Staff Summary & Comments
Code Book and Personnel Policies

Page 2 2022-104

9.0  ATTACHMENTS: A.Red-line of proposed removal of Sections 644,01, 644.02, 644 03,
644.04, 644.05 and 644.06
B. Red-line of proposed amendments to Personnel Policies 400.01,
400.02, 400.03, 400.04, 400,05 and 400.06

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements,

o “} )
rfyﬁﬁm-éﬁgwﬁ“ﬂi/ g’f}é A’) . fz(* o ng

General Manager, Chief Executive Officér



ATTACHMENT A TO STAFF SUMMARY

BMPLOVED COMPENSAPION

1 (.-‘-‘E-(E—i—i—'t—‘H—.‘%—-j;)-i-'t':i-?”‘-'t‘--ii-ﬂ-}-{{--l-lf‘}w4:‘--?"-1-H Wk ¢
Hro-chry-hows-obwerle-prefo Aoy eesda-t-post —I{—H-l—; —-+!<4pi+k1mm}% 44
seebion-may-have-diffe -g-ami £ --]-H}HH“ Hii-l{“-r bt avorlc thesame
reqrired-pinbor-of-ho

(e —A—deprstment-hend-shall-not-approve-Hestimefor-cmployeesin—any
department-swrhove-b-t-dedermaned-that-the-nermal-operation-et-tho-Authoeits
arrot—bemaiakatneds
{Beos- 2001118 Passed-8-2 0200 Ron- 200308 Possod-0:1 7330

644-02-COMPENEATION,

et compls o wt iRz
- gsbrip-be-miede— i}—(ﬂ-{d'{-}éli‘twiﬂﬂ {J-?-?L}’{-J’r'

da)Tp e&e(za('a;t*-d-m-nme&-m---wci-'t
Kewonal-Transnt-AuthopbyeH k :
of-classified-posttions.—as- W{-‘” - H'w im—- ﬂH u-;wl : .l
swbject-{to-anv-lesal-orcontractual-atation 0 Ew—i—ma,--—-]—diweu«r--wﬂl 3tk :
Armmm--aack-maEnRn - cempenssboi-srvach-gradeobelissified posibons-and
each-unelassitiod-posthonverth—tthesmmpnmum-compensation-for-cach-betng-not-loas
than-1H0-pereenbol the anirvm—he CEO-Goneral-Manager/Beeretary-Treasuees
weill-determine-the-compensativnolench-individunt employee-withinthe paveanoo
determined by the-Bosrddor-that-grade-or-postbion:

-—-pfw g

- f}rw----} 1—1—‘&,*;1,{—%—-

(o} —day-omployea-promeotedto-n-hizher-elassification-shall-advanee to-the
pay-range-designatodtor-the elnssfentior be-withn- the-range dhat-refloets
rberna—ogaity—anddor-—ma ‘
Genern-MansgerfBeoretary-l

fh iy % L

()t a-new-position-ds-established - the- Birector-ef-Human-Resousees-shaltl



dowiup byl ':»!H-e*i—F-i—}f-)—(%—i—i%?ﬁ—i—l—E‘-l‘(*;r‘---‘ff:}%{r)-----{%5:‘?-;1-{:?“:-----6:}’\"‘{&}UH{(‘ e M";m«m to-destpnate-the

peatient- e s

--‘-W-{-'}:hfl{
PASERRL LY,

.. ---1.--l-l---€:.’h:l+¥¥i----frfté-’\r-ﬁ’«‘-!:l-—i.-:-H-}r--’v“r-\‘;H.-L—-—j&iz3‘-}:-1:€::1{-1----I:!-‘r}i-l-‘---fzrk-}-').-}f;!----ﬁ-ﬂvﬁt:-"tlr‘"‘h:'[:i-z-l:-f
nae-hones-eorkodthoreadtor:

..J-1:w-ta—--‘t‘qaa-wt:-caw-t; E3E:
et

(o The- L ORTA utitigos-a-divect-deposi—progrmm-aad s H-cmplovess—are
enpeotpaged-to-avatb-thomeseleos-ofthis-goron.
(Ros- 200119 Passed- 2101 Rese-203:8-058 Passe d-D 1Yl b

HAL 04 PAY RO DS DUCTIONS.
Cad—Thepre—are—two-t5pog- m{ pzw mll {INE b tort- that-dho—dathoritysha bl
ho-suthomredtomake P

ek withholding ta hre-
-?:5--. SRS -pad-adb-eourta H]tﬁd—él ted-de 3(1 e
had-fom-Modiopredor-emplovecs ived
. E@;—H—l—}-ﬁ{-}fy';'{-}(-k‘f‘r‘-li-‘ﬂ-?;’l:{";—'---ﬁ-h{-il-}'ir{:3-1:‘75:-;'&1&“‘-‘-(’l-'&‘i:E-{-H-*-‘ '-é-(—'a-ma;a EORT-WAEE
‘ : b et
2 LY fw#umt - dww
wrisn-deductionsand-deferred-compensation contributions

{y)—PFor-thesecmplovess-subjeet-to-withhelding -payments-meandated-hy-the
-i?;f-}{-!;i‘—l‘r--G‘-):F—--i;—}l't(’:‘ﬁ-ﬁi:ihl-({%—1%‘lrl-j{.ﬁ-}é-H-““c‘---'{‘i}ﬂ-f:(-ﬁc‘-(-‘('-‘-ﬂ’tt’-llk'-l“’[--tfls:-;&‘{i&-}.ﬁﬁ!‘v’----*E;l-‘kﬁ-vA-U" ‘-‘--hf-'-}1-=-i~t-'y*f««imﬂ«‘1‘1-}-4«"1‘-:@.-651“53%t»ﬁ*@‘i-\\b-xz‘---l—;x-w"
te-notifi—the-Couvt-or- GHE : G £y
(HEBODD)-or—rmove -‘----r-l-‘-}-'t-ﬁ-‘------xrH-i-h(-ﬂ:-l-(
ar&m—r}m—m{*m--im et hﬂ éxy dm ii_‘fi-'{‘{:.‘tk-'---frs-i?!.E#-‘--}:'}-P;t-yﬂlﬁé-ﬂ"tr----fl:ﬂ:' gt rpen-eeder-afthe-Douet

i 1.-&1-1—'“1{% randated- h\ ldw L heald Hmd lm}m

sadary-for-hel-day--absonees-dor--porsonal
appheable-tederal-and-State-law.




G445 US« ERECAS RV ROV
7% WO 0 ERRIORT: ‘---doi ned-ao--houwes-worled-bovosd-the-normad-work-week:
b -ueeordanes Faip-—labor-Siapdards—Ack-positions-are--ehssfiod-ag
235 3 w-the—wago-and-howm-provigens -based-on-the-natvre
erf- {he dubreg - Nop-exempt-posiionsare-sabicct-to-a-mininrmm-wage- wad-hme-and
sre-hat-vates-of-p r:.i’f,”-*-'-.E-fc-.]--?:"-‘--L-i:(:-H_-!‘-l--n-.r----&ﬁ--{fl-!.--]rir}{:l-—1:9‘(1?:?‘—(:}?:1:*2‘;7-{(:}7}:"{'-‘fj"-'-:l"i ene-vrsetePppientiee dhis
imetudes--elevieal--teehnionl-an
skt WL nnd hum pmwmuna :f Haeh—;miu—a—e M Hw einemr-mw{a f%e {mml
the Aty sepativer-—-and-professional
preibionse %ﬁ-m imw werea ")li}v-&‘ﬁ‘h dw—ﬂ-u P le——&a—-{xh l{& pr-overthne-(Rentexempth
asetditoral-time-worked-boyond-the-neommalbwerkaweckamust-he-nuthorized-byv-the
FEAE rervisor-aad-approved-by—thedopsrbment-divector—Emplovees-wall

bk —Hor-purpasesof this-sestion-thenumber- ol homsworked-shall-bo-decmed
ter-imetide-onlv-hewss actuallyworkeod:

bkl sat-suthorme-work-t—oreess-ol-Jorthours dor-nons
voptationdntho depasiment-badootis avatdable for

el Bupervisa:
exompt-emplovessunlessan
PO

'=-}4i-:-}--i-}---ﬁ.‘:‘:\!‘%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ—-ﬁ:“t—i&)—k1-'{=ﬁ5—€ﬁ-{£f3{:5-¥3?i-:}ii-&3 Frrbori-siape-eoruedeompensatoy
panted-to-tho—emploves-by-his-or-her-supervisor-ad-a-mutually

(;E!-}‘~~--*«--{-‘3‘E.'-l-‘-“r'-ii:‘ii"i-E-.‘:E-l4-2-.---{:‘lx‘f}i-‘-—i%i-(:.‘(—"i-'l-,'-’::l&}fﬁl:"-----{-_%ff}-}lﬁ;;pﬁ-!—}-:‘:‘i—f:-],—‘?:(:3-3:'-“_‘7‘------1“’!'-1-'5'-1@--‘---I:H“H-*--‘--'-ﬂ-"" s M-}fi‘-iw-”fE(‘E‘ii*-ﬂ-‘l-ivi-}{-‘l.-‘l' T
obomplovment-shall-boeslevlated-at-the-average-vesnlar-vate of- or-the-fiamd
threo-wears-of-ewployment—or-the i:ﬂ.ﬂ-l—---—.I-'f;?f_;;;’--ﬂ-:{-‘t-i-‘i*;‘--‘ic--t-.l‘t:(., POV~ lw riw Nl mplm-ew--

whicheverds-highes

() —plovecsin-exompt-positions—as-define d-in-the-Fate-Labor-Standards
At O e et —-CoMPE RSO R eHEReE - By Basment-of-evort e oty
eompensitory-time -off-foradditional-time-worked hevond-the-vermal work-weely
pxnsepi-na-chatedin-the-Call-Out-Poliey.
tRee 20032110 Passed 82101 Roy 2012-08 Dagsad 03743

6446 AL O RPOLTCY FOR-Mack Mo M B LG
The-snlaries-of-exempt-emploveos-are-hasod-on- (‘01211)&*—1%:“1&:1— Hfov-performanes
ef—-u-job-rathes-than-performonee-on-atime-bacie-Io-coneralt-dsexpectod-that-un



ATTACHMENT B TO STAFF SUMMARY

Section 400 - Compensation & Benefits

A. Employee Compensation

400.01 WORK WEEK AND HOURS

The normal work week for full-time non-bargaining non-exempt Authority employees is forty (40)
hours, generally five days per week, eight hours per day with a lunch period of uniform duration
established by the department director. Lunch periods are unpaid and employees shoulebmust
be relieved from duty during this time.

A Elaadime-flextime program allows an employee to choose, within specified limits, the daily
hours of work preferred. Thus, employees in a particular department or section may have

different starting and finishing times, but will work the same required number of hours per

week.

A flextime program shall be approved at the discretion of an emplovee's department directar. A
department head-director shall not approve flextime for employees in any department where it is
determined that the normal operation of the Authority cannot be maintained.

400.02 COMPENSATION

Compensation practices shall comply with sound personnel management principles. Efforts shall
be made to compensate employees fairly and equitably in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations. Employeas subject to collective bargaining agreements shall be compensated in
accordance with the terms and conditions of those agreements.

In accordance with Article IV, Section 2 of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
Bylaws, the Board will set pay ranges for each grade of classified positions, as well as the pay
ranges for ali unclassified positions, subject to any legal or contractual limitation. The pay
ranges will include both minimum and maximum compensation for each grade of classified
positions and each unclassified position,; with-the-ramdmum-ecompensation-for-cach-bemng-net-
less-than-180-peroant-of-the-minitim.

The CEO-Deputy General Manager- Human Resources as desianated by the General
ManageriSesratary-Treasurer, Chief Executive Officer will determine the compensation of each
individual employee within the pay range determined by the Board for that grade or position.

Any employee promated to a higher classification shall advance o the pay range designated for
the classification at a rate within the range that reflects internal equity and/or market
competitiveness as determined by the Deputy General Manage:-Human Resources as.

if a new position is established, the Bireater-ofDeputy General Manager — Human Resources
shall develop a job description  and job title for the new position, evaluate the new position to
designate the appropriate grade level and pay range, and assign the new position a classification
number,




400.03 PAYROLL CHECKS

The anticipated annual salary received by an exempt employee, as defined by the Fair Labor

the same, predetermined weekly salary for each week in which work is paerformed in accordance
with state and federal law. Payroll checks, therefore, cover a full two-week period, starting on
Sunday mornhing of the first week and terminating on Saturday of the second week. Nan-exempt
seven-day work period, and time and a half their regular rate for any overtime hours worked past
forty (40} hours thereafter_ags authorized by the immediate supervisor and approved by the
department director.

The GCRTA utilizes a direct deposit program and all employees are encouraged to avail
themselves of this service.

400,04 PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS

There are two types of payroll deductions that the Authority shall be authorized to make from
employes wages:

(a) Mandatory: Mandatory payroll deductions are made for applicable Federaifederal, State-
state and local withholding taxes; the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (‘QFERS");
and all cout-mandated deductions. Social Security tax is deducted for Medicare for employeas

hired after April 1, 1886,

(b) Voluntary: Employees may authorize deductions from wages for such items as
hespiializaten-healthcare, vision, eptisal -and dental insurance, life insurance, U.S. Savings
Bonds, charity cheice contributions, agency fee/union dues, credit union deductions, ang-
deferred compensation contributions, and additional tax deductions bevond those required by
law, Forthose employees subject to withholding payments mandated by the-a Gourt-court or the
a Ghild-child Suppork-support Erfercement-enforcerent Agensey-agency {"CSEA"), the Authority
is mandated by law to notify the Seurt-court or CSEA of any lump sum payment of one hundred
fifty dollars ($150.00) or more. The Authority is further mandated by law to hold said lump sum
payment for thirty (30} days after the payment date and upon order of the Geurt-court or CSEA,
to pay any specified amount of the lump sum payment to the Division of Child Support,

The GCRTA may otherwise deduct money from an exempt employee's’ salary for full day
absences for personal reasons or as otherwise permitted by applicable federal and state law.

400.05 OVERTIME

Overtime is defined as hours worked beyond the normal forty (40} hour work week. in
accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act ("FLSA"), positions are classified as exempt or
non-exempt from the wage and hour provisions based on the nature of the duties. Non-exempt
positions are subject fo a minimum wage and time and one-half rates of pay for hours worked



bayond forty (40) hours in one week, Typically, this includes clerical, technical, and unskilled
positions. Exempt positions are not subject to the wage and hour provisions if the nature of the
duties meets defined criteria. Typically, this includes executive, administrative, and professional
positions. For those employees designated as eligible for overtime (non-exempt), additional time
warked beyond the normal work week must be authorized by the immediate supervisor and
approved by the department director. Employees will be paid for all hours actually worked, but
employees who work overtime without prior authorization may be subject to disciplinary action.

For purposes of this section, the number of hours worked shall be deemed to include only hours
actually worked.

Supervisors shall not authorize work in excess of forty (40) hours for non-exempt employees
unless an appropriation in the departmant budget is available for payment.

In lieu of overtime payment andfor non-bargaining, non-exempt employees, a supervisor and a non-
exempt employee may agree in advance to accrue compensatory time on a time and oneg-half
basis_for hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours in one wesk. At no time will any non-exempt
employee accrue more than forty (40) hours of compensatory time. Accrued compensatory time
off may be granted to the employee by his or her supervisor at a mutually convenient time.

Payment for accrued compensatory time not used upon termination of employment shall be
calculated af the average reguiar rate of pay for the final three years of employment, or the final
reguiar rate received by the employee, whichever is higher.

Employees inexempt positions, as defined intheFairkober Blepdards AdLSA, witshal not receve compensation, efher
by payment of overtime or by compensatory time off, for additional time worked beyond the
normal work week, except as stated in the Call-Out Policy.

400.06 CALL-QUT FOR EXEMPT EMPLOYEES

The salaries of exempt employees are based on compensation for performance of a job rather
thanpederrancasnahours e basioworked. Ingeneral tisexpected that anexemptemployee wil work overtirme, when
requested, without additional compensation in order to accomplish a specific assignment.
However, it is recognized that business circumstances can arise which create a need for an
employee to be called--out in response to an emergency or other unusual or special
circumstance, When such situations occur, eligible exempt employees may receive call-out
compensation_at the discretion of the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer or {hair




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-104

REMOVING SECTIONS 644.01 WORK WEEK AND HOURS, 644.02
COMPENSATION, 644.03 PAYROLL CHECKS, 644.04 PAYROLL
DEDUCTIONS, 644.05 OVERTIME AND 644.06 CALL-OUT POLICY FOR
EXEMPT EMPLOYEES FROM THE CODIFIED RULES AND REGULATIONS
OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY AS
DUPLICATIVE OF PERSONNEL POLICIES 400.01, 400.02, 400.03, 400.04,
400.05 AND 400,08, RESPECTIVELY, AND AMENDING THOSE PERSONNEL

POLICIES

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 1989-176, the Board of Trustees of the
Authority codified the resolutions establishing its policies and procedures; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has conducted a review and determined that Sections
644.01 Work Week and Hours, 644.02 Compensation, 644,03 Fayroll Checks, 644.04
Payroll Deductions, 644.05 Overtime and 644.06 Call-out Policy for Exempt Employees,
should be removed because they duplicate Personnel Policies 400.01, 400.02, 400.03,

400.04, 400.05 and 400.06; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has also determined that Personnel Policies 400.01,
400.02, 400.03, 400.04, 400.05 and 400.06 should be updated.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That Sections 644.01 Work Week and Hours, 644.02 Compensation,
644.03 Payroll Checks, 844.04 Payroll Deductions, 644.05 Overtime and 644,06 Call-out |
Palicy for Exempt Employees are hereby removed from the Codified Rules and Regulations of
the Greater Cleveiand Regional Transit Authority and retained as Sections 400.01, 400.02,
400.03, 400.04, 400.05 and 400.06 of the Personnel Policies.

section 2. That Personnel Policies 400.01, 400,02, 400,03, 400.04, 400.05 and
400.06 are hereby amended to read as specified in Attachment A hereto.

Section 3. That the Board of Trustees hereby waives the fourteen-day period provided
for in Article XI, Section 2 of the Bylaws.

Section 4. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Attachment A - Personne! Policies 400.01 — 400.06

Adopted. November 15, 2022
President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



ATTACHMENT A TO RESOLUTION

Section 400 - Compensation & Benefits

A. Employee Compensation

400.01 WORK WEEK AND HOURS

The normal work week for full-time non-bargaining non-exempt Authority employess is forty (40)
hours, generally five days per week, eight hours per day with a lunch period of uniform duration
established by the department director. Lunch periods are unpaid and employees must be
relieved from duty during this time,

A flextime program allows an employee to choose, within specified limits, the daily hours of
work preferred. Thus, employees in a particular department or section may have different
starting and finishing times, but will work the same required number of hours per week.

A fiextime program shall be approved at the discretion of an employee's department director. A
department director shall not approve flextime for employees in any department where it is
determined that the normal operation of the Authority cannot be maintained.

400.02 COMPENSATION

Compensation practices shall comply with sound personnel management principles. Efforts shall
be made to compensate employees fairly and equitably in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations. Employees subject to collective bargaining agreements shall be compensated in
accordance with the terms and conditions of those agreements,

in accordance with Article 1V, Section 2 of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
Bylaws, the Board will set pay ranges for each grade of classified positions, as well as the pay
ranges for all unclassified positions, subject 1o any legal or contractual limitation. The pay
ranges will include both minimum and maximum compensation for each grade of classified

positions and each unclassified position,

The Deputy General Manager- Human Resources as designated by the General Manager,
Chief Executive Officer will delermine the compensation of each individual employee within the
pay range determined by the Board for that grade or position.

Any employee promoted to a higher classification shall advance to the pay range designated for
the classification at a rate within the range that reflects internal equity and/or market
competitiveness as determined by the Deputy General Manager-Human Resources as
designated by the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer.

if & new position is established, the Deputy General Manager - Human Resources shali develop
a job description and job title for the new position, evaluate the new position to designate the
appropriate grade level and pay range, and assign the new position a classification number,



400,03 PAYROLL CHECKS

The anticipated annual salary received by an exempt employee, as defined by the Fair Labor
Standards Act ("FLSA"), is divided into twenty-six equal parts. Exempt employees will receive
the same, predetermined weekly salary for each week in which work is performed in accordance
with state and federal law. Payroll checks, therefore, cover a full two-week period, starting on
Sunday morning of the first week and terminating on Saturday of the second week. Non-exempt
employees will be paid their regular rate of pay for all hours up to forty (40) worked in each
seven-day work period, and time and a half their regular rate for any overtime hours worked past
forty (40) hours thereafter, as authorized by the immediate supervisor and approved by the
department director.

The GCRTA utilizes a direct deposit program and all employees are encouraged to avail
themselves of this service.

400.04 PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS

There are two types of payroll deductions that the Authority shall be authorized to make from
ernployee wages.

(a) Mandatory: Mandatory payroll deductions are made for applicable federal, state and
local withholding taxes; the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (“OPERS"); and all court-
mandated deductions. Social Security tax is deducted for Medicare for employees hired after
April 1, 19886,

(b} Voluntary: Employees may authorize deductions from wages for such items as
healthcare, vision, and dental insurance, life insurance, U.8. Savings Bonds, charity choice
contributions, agency fee/union dues, credit union deductions, deferred compensation
contributions, and additionai tax deductions beyond those required by law. For those employees
subject to withholding payments mandated by a court or a child support enforcement agency
("CSEA"), the Authority is mandated by law to notify the court or CSEA of any lump sum
payment of one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00) or more. The Authority is further mandated by
faw to hold said lump sum payment for thirty (30) days after the payment date and upon order of
the court or CSEA, to pay any specified amount of the lump sum payment to the Division of Child

Support,

The GCRTA may otherwise deduct money from an exempt employees' salary for full day
absences for personal reasons or as otherwise permitted by applicable federal and state law.

400.05 OVERTIME

Overtime is defined as hours worked beyond the normal forty (40) hour work week. In
accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act ("FLSA”"), positions are classified as exempt or
non-exempt from the wage and hour provisions based on the nature of the duties. Non-exempt
positions are subject to a minimum wage and time and one-half rates of pay for hours worked
beyond forty (40) hours in one week. Typically, this includes clerical, technical, and unskilled



positions, Exempt positions are not subject to the wage and hour provisions if the nature of the
duties meets defined criterta. Typically, this includes executive, administrative, and professional
positions. For those employees designated as eligible for overtime (non-exempt), additional time
worked beyond the normal work week must be authorized by the immediate supervisor and
approved by the department director. Employees wilt be paid for all hours actually worked, but
employees who work overtime without prior authorization may be subject to disciplinary action.

For purposes of this section, the number of hours worked shall be deemed to include only hours
actually worked.

Supervisors shall not authorize work in excess of forty (40) hours for non-exempt employees
unless an appropriation in the department budget is available for payment.

In lieu of overtime payment for non-bargaining, non-exempt employees, a suparvisor and a non-
exempt employee may agree in advance to accrue compensatory time on a time and one-half
basis for hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours in one week. At no time will any non-exemipt
employee accrue more than forty (40) hours of compensatory time. Accrued compensatory time
off may be granted to the employee by his or her supervisor at a mutually convenient time.

Payment for accrued compensatory time not used upon termination of employment shall be
calculated at the average regular rate of pay for the final three years of employment, or the final
regular rate received by the employee, whichever is higher.

Employeas in exempt positions, as defined in the FLSA, shall not receive compensation, either
by payment of overiime or by compansatory time off, for additional time worked beyond the
normal work week, except as stated in the Call-Out Policy.

400.06 CALL-OUT FOR EXEMPT EMPLOYEES

The salaries of exempt employees are based on compensation for performance of a job rather
than hours worked. In general, it is expected that an exempt employee will work overtime, when
reguested, without additional compensation in order to accomplish a specific assignment.
However, it is recognized that business circumstances can arise which create a need for an
employee {0 be called-out in response to an emergency or other unusual or special
circumnstance. When such situations ocour, eligible exempt employees may receive call-out
compensation at the discretion of the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer or their
designee.



Form 100-326

Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

01-12-22 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
2022-105
AMENDING SECTION 222.05(e) OF THE CODIFIED RULES AND Date
REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT November 10, 2022
AUTHORITY - '
Initiator:
Board of Trusteas

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval [ Review/Comment 0 Information Only [ Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

8.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will amend Section 222.05(e) of the Codified Rules and
Regulations ("Code Book”) of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("GCRTA").
Section 222 05 was enacted on August 23, 2022 to create the Civilian Oversight Commitiee
("COC"). The purpose of the COC is to review public complaints filed against GCRTA Transit
Palice Department (“TP") employees.

DESCRIPTIONAUSTIFICATION: This amendment has been prepared at the direction of
GCRTA's Board of Trustees, The amendment to Section 222.05(e) will increase the
compensation for members of the COC from one thousand, two hundred doliars ($1,200.00)
per year, paid at a rate of one hundred dollars ($100.00) per month, to one thousand, eight
hundred dollars ($1,800.00) per year, paid at a rate of one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00) per
month. Members of the COC also receive unlimited transit privileges during their service,

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGRQUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: Amending Section 222.05(e) of the Codified Rules and Regulations of the
GCRTA will increase the compensation of the members of the COC as directed by the Board
of Trustees.

ECONOMIC IMPACT. Members of the COC will be compensated six hundred doltars ($600)
more per year than under the prior provision. Compensation for COC members will be paid
from the Board of Trustees’ departmental budget.

ALTERNATIVES: Not adopting this resolution. Compensation of members of the COC will
remain at one thousand, two hundred dollars ($1,200.00) per year, paid at a rate of one
hundred doilars ($100.00) per month.
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that this resolution be adopted.
ATTACHMENT: A —Red-line of amendment to Section 222.05(e)

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the

availability of funds, legal form, and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

Zondse Bordsog T doy KB

General Manager, Chief Executive(Dfficéf




Attachment A to Staff Summary

(e) Compensation. Members of the COC shall receive a stipend of $31-20081, 800 per year,
paid at $3100%150 per month.




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-105

AMENDING SECTION 222.05(e) OF THE CODIFIED RULES AND
REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT
AUTHORITY TO INCREASE THE COMPENSATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE
CIVILIAN OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE FROM $1,200 TO $1,800 PER YEAR
(BOARD OF TRUSTEES DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, in its efforts to provide greater transparency and community input and to
improve relationships between the community and the Authority in the modern policing
environment, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authority”) created an
independeant Civilian Qversight Committee ("*COC"} on August 23, 2022 pursuant to Resolution
No, 2022-082; and

WHEREAS, under Section 222.05(e) of the Codified Rules and Regulations of the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Autherity, members of the COC are to be compensated in
the amount of one thousand, two hundred dollars ($1,200.00) per year, paid at a rate of one
hundred doltars {($100.00) per month; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees intends to increase the compensation of members of
the COC from cne thousand, two hundred doliars ($1,200.00) per year, paid at a rate of one
hundred dollars ($100.00) per month, to one thousand, eight hundred dollars ($1,800.00) per
year, paid at a rate of one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00) per month; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary {o for the Board of Trustess to amend Section 222.05(¢) of
the Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority to
increase the compensation of members of the COC.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That Section 222.05(e) of the Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority is hereby amended to increase the compensation paid to
members of the Civilian Oversight Committee {o one thousand, eight hundred dollars
($1,800.00) per year, paid at a rate of one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00) per month, as
specified in Attachment A herato.

Section 2. That the compensation for members of the Civilian Oversight Committee will
be paid out of the Board of Trustees' department budget,

Section 3. That the Board of Trustees hereby waives the fourteen-day period provided
for in Article XI, Section 2 of the Bylaws.

Section 4. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Attachment A - Code Book Section 222.05(¢e)

Adopted: November 15, 2022

President

Aftest:

Sacretary-Treasurar



Attachment A to Resolution

{(e) Compenszation. Members of the COC shall receive a stipend of $1,800 per year, paid at
$150 per month.




Farm 100-326
01-12.22

Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

TITLE/DESCRIPTION; Resolution No.:
2022-106
ADOPTING THE OPERATING PROCEDURES OF THE CIVILIAN Date:
OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE November 10, 2022
Initiator,
Transit Police
Department
ACTION REQUEST:
& Approval [ Review/Comment [ Information Onty [} Other
1.0  PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Board of Trustees to adopt procedures for the

2.0

3.0
4.0

50

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

operation of the Civilian Oversight Committee (“COC"). The purpose of the COC is to review
public complaints filed against GCRTA Transit Police Department {("TP") empioyees. The COC
shall have the power to receive, investigate, and make recommendations for the resolution of
public complaints regarding alleged misconduct by TP employesas.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION; The Civiian Oversight Committee is intended to give voice
to the community and enhance transparency and accountability through an independent review
and investigation of complaints of excessive use of force incidents and public complaints
regarding TP. The COC will increase the public's understanding of law enforcement policies
and procedures and help improve upon them. Adoption of the proposed operating procedures
will provide guidelines to COC members for the effective operation of the COC.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROOUND: Does not apply.
AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: Under Section 222.05(f) of the Codified Rules and Regulations of the
Authority, the Board of Trustees shall adopt procedures for the operation of the COC.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: Members of the COC will receive unlimited transit privileges during their
service. Members of the COC also will be compensated in the amount of one thousand, eight
hundred dollars ($1,800.00) per year, paid at a rate of one hundred fifty dolfars ($150.00) per
moenth, Compensation for COC members shall be paid from the Board of Trustess'
departmental budget.

ALTERNATIVES: Not adopting this resolution. The COC will not have procedures for
operation, as required by the Codified Rules and Regulations of the Authority.

RECOMMENDATION: The operating procedures for the COC were discussed by the Board of
Trustees at the November 1, 2022 Committee of the Whole meeting. If is recommended that

this resolution is passed adopting the operating procedures.
ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and ceriified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements,

Lotz ﬁ’/z::/,,;:#«r M Kooy I

General Manager, Chief Executivg,Officefl




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-106

ADOPTING THE OPERATING PROCEDURES OF THE CIVILIAN OVERSIGHT
COMMITTEE

WHEREAS, under Article VI, Section 4 of the Bylaws of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority ("Authority”), the Board of Trustees is authorized to establish
special advisary committees; and

WHEREAS, in its efforts to provide greater transparency and community input, and to
improve relationships between the community and the Authority in the modern policing
environment, on August 23, 2022, the Board of Trustees adopted Resolution 2022-82, creating
an independent Civilian Oversight Committee ("COC"); and

WHEREAS, the COC's purpose is to review public complaints filed against the
Authority’s Transit Police Department employees; and

WHEREAS, the COC will receive, investigate, and make recommendations for the
resolution of public complaints regarding alleged misconduct by Transit Police employees; and

WHEREAS, under Section 222 .05(f) of the Codified Rules and Regulations of the
Authority, the Board of Trustees is required to adept procedures for the operation of the COC;

and

WHEREAS, adoption of the Operating Procedures of the COC will provide guidelines to
COC members for the efficiant operation of the COC.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the Operating Procedures of the Civilian Oversight Committee are
hereby adopted to read as specified in Attachment A hereto.

Section 2. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Attachment: A, Civilian Oversight Committee Qperating Procedures

Adopted: November 15, 2022
President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



reater Cleveland
egional Transit Authority

CIVILIAN OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE

OPERATING PROCEDURES



CIVILIAN OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE
OPERATING PROCEDURES

A. PURPOSE OF THE CIVILIAN OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE

1. The purpose of the Civilian Oversight Committee (“COC") is to review public
complaints filed against Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (‘GCRTA")
Transit Police Department ("TP”") employees,

2. Forthis purpose to be achieved, the COC shall have the power to receive, investigate,
and make recommendations for the resolution of public complaints regarding alleged
misconduct by TP employees.

B. PURPOSE, SCOPE, AND IMPACT OF THESE OPERATING PROCEDURES

1. These COC Operating Procedures contain all rules, procedures, processes, and
general operations of the COC.

2. All provisions of these COC Qperating Procedures shall be considered in-a manner
consistent with GCRTA's/TP's rules, policies, and procedures; the collective
bargaining agreement between GCRTA and the Fraternal Order of Police Ohio Labor
Council, ine. ("FOP"); and all federal, state, and local laws and regulations. If the rules,
procedures, processes, and general operations contained in these COC Operating
Procedures are found to be in conflict with GCRTA's/TP's rules, policies, and
procedures; the collective bargaining agreement between GCRTA and the FOP; or
federal, state, and/or local laws and regulations, the latter will contral,

C. DEFINITIONS

1. “Allegation” — A charge or claim made by a Complainant that, if established as true,
could constitute a violation of a specific provision of GCRTA/TP policies and
procedures,

2. "Civilian Oversight Committee (COC)" - The committee made up of non-TP
employees, including public citizens and GCRTA employees, responsible far
reviewing, investigating, and making recormmendations regarding complaints
concerning the conduct of TP employees.

Page |2 Rev. November 9, 2022



“Complainant” - Anyone who is not a GCRTA employee formally filing a comptaint
against a TP employee. (Complaints by a GCRTA employee against a TF employee
will be handled by the appropriate internal resolution process as outlined in Section

{(F)(3)).
*Days” — Business days, excluding weekends and holidays.

“Preponderance of the evidence” — A determination that, based on all of the
evidence, a fact or allegation sought to be proven is more probable than not.

“Relevant” — Evidence tending to make the existence of any fact that is of
consequence to the investigation of a given complaint more probable or less probable
than it would be otherwise without such evidence.

“Transit Police Employees” or “TP Employees” - Any individual employed by TP,
inciuding sworn officers, security staff, dispatchers, clerical staff, administrative staff,
Transit Ambassadors, and Crisis Intervention Specialists.

D. ORGANIZATION

1.

2,

Page |3

Composition of the COC

a. The COC consists of seven (7) members who are representative of the diverse
communities within Cuyahoga County, Ohio.

b. The GCRTA Board of Trustees ("GCRTA Board") shall appoint each member of
the COC through the selection process outlined in subsection (3) of this section.

Qualifications of COC Members

a. COC members shall have a general understanding of GCRTA services and its TP
Department.

b, Members should have the ability to remain objective and unbiased in order to
represent the best interests of the public.

c. COC membership should reflect GCRTA's customer base and have diverse
representation regarding age, sex, race, color, religion, national origin, disability,
genetic information, sexual orientation, military status, transit dependence, and
geography. All COC members should be 18 years old or older and a resident of
Cuyahoga County.

d. COC members shall be outstanding members of the community and exhibit a
strong moral code. All COC members should be free of any criminal history.

e. At least one (1) member of the COC shall be a retired police officer with Ohio
Peace Officer Training Academy experience. If there are no such applicants, then
one (1) member position of the COC shall remain vacant untit an applicant with
this qualification can be appointed.

Rev. November 9, 2022



3. Selection Process of New COU Members

a.

All individuals interested in becoming a COC member shall submit an application.

b. An ad hoc Screening Committee consisting of the Chief of Police, the

CEO/General Manager of GCRTA, two or more GCRTA staff members, and one
or more GCRTA Board Member(s) shall review the applications based on the
criteria set out in subsection (2) of this section and refer a slate of candidates to
the GCRTA Board.

Appointment of COC members shall be made by the GCRTA Board in December
of each year. Appointments become effective January 1 of each year. Interim
appointments may be made at other times throughout the year to fill vacancies.

4. Term of Membership

Terms of membership for COC members shall be for three (3) years.

b. Terms of membership for COC members shall be staggered so that no more than

.

three (3) COC membars’ terms expire in any year.

To ensure that the COC member terms will be staggered, two COC members’
initial appointments shall be for one (1) year, two COC members’ initial
appointments shall be for two (2) years, and three COC members' initial
appointments shall be for the full three (3) years.

5, COC Officers

Page |4

a. The COC shall select one (1) member annually to serve as the Chair and one
(1) member annually to serve as the Vice-Chair. The Chair and Vice-Chair
shalt be selected by a majority vote of alt current COC members during the first
meeting of each year. The terms of the Chair and Vice-Chair shall be one year
and until their successcrs take office. The Chair and Vice-Chair shall serve no
more than three (3) consecutive one (1) year terms. After serving three (3)
consecutive one (1) year terms as Chair or Vice-Chair, a COC member may
not be elected to the same office of Chair or Vice-Chair for at least two (2)
years,

Duties and Powers of the Chair
i. The Chair shall preside over all meetings of the COC and shall have the

right to vote on all guestions.

ii. The Chair shall ensure all policies, procedures, and laws pertaining to
actions by the COC are faithfully followed.

iit. The Chair shall act as the spokesperson in all matters pertaining to the COC.

iv. The Chair shall sign any documents on behalf of the COC afier approval by
the majority vote of a quorum.

v. The Chair shall perform such other duties and responsibilities as determined
by the COC.

Rev. November 9, 2022



c.

Duties and Powars of the Vice-Chair
i. The Vice-Chair shall perform the duties and have the authority of the Chair
during the absence or inability of the Chair to perform such duties and during
any period while the office of Chair is vacant,

ii. The Vice-Chair shall preside at all meetings of the COC when and white the
Chair is vacant. When performing the duties and having the authority of the
Chair, the Vice-Chair shall have all powers of the Chair.

lii. The Vice-Chair shall perform such other duties and have such authority as
the COC may from time to time provide.

d. Temporary Chair

.

i. At any meeting at which both the Chair and the Vice-Chair are absent, the
COC, by a majority vote of those present, may elect a member of the COC
to serve as the temporary Chair for that meeting.

Removal

i. All officers of the COC shall serve at the pleasure of the GCRTA Board and
shall be subject to removal by the GCRTA Board at any time.

ii. All officers of the COC may be removed from their officer position for any
reason a COC member may be removed from membership as enumerated
irn subsection (8)(a)(ii) of this section.

6. Vacancies of the CQC

Page | &

Any of the following circumstances shall lead to a vacancy on the CQC:
i. Death or resignation of a COC member.
ii. Removal of a COC member by the GCRTA Board. A COC member may
be removed for having three, consecutive unexcused absences; for having
. unexcused absences from more than one-third of regular meetings of the
COC over the course of the most recent twelve-month period; failing to
attend and complete the training under subsection (7) of this section within
six (8) months of the beginning of the COC member's term; violating any
GCRTAMMP policies and/or procadures; violating any federal, state, or local
criminal laws; for any other reason authorized by law; or any conduct
unbeceming a representative of the public.

b. COC members may continue to serve after the expiration of their terms if not

C.

replaced, at the invitation of the GCRTA Board.

Vacancies that occur in the middle of a term shall be filed in the same manner as
prescribed under subsection (3) of this section for the duration of the unexpired
term.

If a COC member desires to resign, the COC member shall notify the Chair and
the GCRTA Board of the resignation in writing.

Rev. November 9, 2022



7. Orientation and Training
a. The TP Administrative Commander, in consultation with the Chief of Police, is
responsible for the establishment of an orientation and training program for COC
members.
b. The orientation and training program shall include familiarization with the following:
i. Federal, state, and local laws involving police-citizen encounters,
including, but not limited to, laws regarding the use of force, stops,
searches, seizures, and arrests;
ii.  Police tactics;
iti.  Investigations of police conduct;
iv. Bias-free policing;
V. Policing individuals in crisis;
vi. GURTA/TP policies, procedures and disciplinary rules;
vi. GUCRTA Code of Ethics;
viii.  Community outreach;
ix. Interactions with the Media; and
X,  Chio Sunshine Laws and the Open Meetings Act.

8. Attendance and Parficipation

a. COC members have a duty to use their besl efforts to attend all regularly-
scheduled meetings and any special COC meetings,

b. If a COC member cannot attend a meeting or other function of the COC where
official business is conducted, the COC member shall provide notice to the Chair
as soon as possible. If a COC member fails to provide notice of an absence to the
Chair prior to the start of a COC meeting, the absence shall be considered
unexcused.

9. Transit Privileges, Compensation, and Reimburserment for Expenses
a. Members of the COC shall receive unlimited transit privileges during their service.
b. The annual compensation for COC members shall be in the amourt of one
thousand, eight hundred dollars ($1,800), paid on a month-to-month basis,
i. The annual compensation for COC members shall be paid from the Board
of Trustees's Departmental Budget.
ii. A COC member has the right to decline compensation.
¢. Members of the COC shall be reimbursed for expenses properly incurred while
undertaking their official COC duties, as approved by the GCRTA Board.

10. COC Staff
a. GCRTA/TP shall designate a Staff Liaison to the COC to serve as the primary point
of contact with GCRTA/TP. COC members are not precluded from contacting other
GCRTA/TP staff directly when appropriate.
i. The Staff Liaison shall be responsible for communications to the COC,
tracking attendance, maintaining a record of meetings, and channgling COC
members’ concerns to the Chief of Police.

Page |6 Rev. November 9, 2022



b. GCRTA/TP shall designate a Staff Investigator to the COC to serve as an

independent invastigator of all complaints assigned to the COC.

i. The Staff Investigator shall be responsible for organizing complaints,
conducting investigations, interviewing withesses, collecting records, and
any other investigatory responsibilities as assigned by the COC.,

ii. The Staff Investigator shall only be entitled to access the records and
personnel pertinent to the matter(s) being investigated.

11. Code of Ethics

COC members and any COC staff shall execute the duties outlined herein in a
manner that is consistent with GCRTA's Code of Ethics.

E. CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

1.

Page |7

Quorem and Voting

a.

b.

For meetings of the COC, a majority of the appointed members shall constitute a
quorum — i.e., at least four (4) members present,

The affirmative vote of the majority of a quorurn shall be required to carry forward
any action by the COC.

Meetings Generally

a,

b.

All meetings of the COC shall be held at the GCRTA Main Office Building unless
otherwise designated in the notice of the mesting.

The COC shall hold meetings as it deems necessary. The GCRTA Board and
GCRTA/TP staff shall have input in setling the COC meeting agendas.,

Notice of COC meetings shall be provided in the same manner as notice for the
GCRTA Board.

Public Meetings

a,

All meetings of the COC, except executive sessions held for purposes required or
permitted by law, shall be open to the public, and no person shall be excluded from
any meeting except for conduct which unreasonably interferes with the orderly
conduct of the meeting.

Rutes of Procedure

a.

Untit otherwise provided, meetings of the COC shall be conducted in accordance
with Robert's Rules of Order, subject to subsection (5) of this section.

Rev. November 8, 2022



5. Conduct of Meetings

a.

Meetings of the COC shall be conducted in accordance with the following
procedures:

. Vote Actions may be taken by voice vote, except that the Chair may, and
upon the request of any member shall, require any vote to be taken by roll
call. Any member of the COC shall be permitted to change his or her vote
until the roll call has been verified and the result declared. A motion for
reconsideration on any vote may be made by any member who was in the
majority on such vote. Such motion must be made not later than the close
of the meeting following the one at which such vote was taken.

ii. Division of Question. i any question contains two or more divisible
propositions, the Chair may, and upon request of a member shall, divide the
same.

ii, Motions. Mations shall be presented, seconded and acted upon, in
accordance with recognized parliamentary procedures. Upon request of
any member, any motion shall be reduced to writing. Any motion may be
withdrawn by the movant with the consent of the second, before it has been
amended or voted upon. All motions which have been entertained by the
Chair shall be entered upon the minutes of the meating.

F. AUTHORITY, JURISDICTION, DUTIES, AND RESPONSIBILITIES

1.

Page |8

The COC has the power to receive, investigate, and make recommendations for the
resolution of public complaints regarding alleged misconduct by TP employees.

The COC has jurisdiction over the following types of complaints of misconduct that are
made against TP employees by a complainant

a.

b.
c.

Harassment complaints, including those alleging bias, discrimination, and profiling
against members of the public;

Excessive force complaints;

Hlegal search and seizure of person or vehicle, including traffic stops and other
property;

Service complaints, including insufficient service or a complete lack of service (i.e.,
failure to make police report, failure to respond to call for service);

Property complaints, including missing property and damaged property of a public
person or peaple; and

Misconduct related to the receipt of a Uniform Traffic Ticket or Parking Infraction
Natice if the Parking Infraction Notice was issued by TP employees.

Internal GCRTA employee complaints against TP employees and those determined to
be Human Resources in nature shall not be heard by the COC and will be resolved by
the GCRTA's/TP's internal complaint resolution process. The Chief of Police or their
designee will be responsible for determining which complaints shall be reviewed by
the COC and which shall be resolved by the GCRTA's/TP's internal complaint
resolution processes,

Rev. November 9, 2022



G. FILING A COMPLAINT

1.

Complainants can file a complaint with the COC via mail, email, calling, or in-person
atthe TP Main Office. Complainants are encouraged to use the COC Public Complaint
Form that can be found on the TP's website or available at the GCRTA TP Department.

Any comptlaint received by a COC member shall be documented and forwarded to the
Chief of Police and the TP Administrative Commander. The TP Administrative
Commander shall order a review and investigation of the complaint in accordance with
General Order 06.09, the Investigation of Employee Misconduct paolicy.

The COC shall notify GCRTA and the Chief of Police of the COC's receipt and
acceptance of a complaint and direct the COC Staff Investigator to commence an
investigation.

The TP Administrative Commander shall notify the complainant that the complaint has
been received.

H. HEARING AND REVIEW PROCEDURES

1.

Page |9

The TP Administrative Commander shall send the complaint and investigation
materials to the COC Staff Investigator within ten (10) days after completion of the
Internal Affairs investigation.

The COC shall review each case within ten (10) days after receipt of the complaint
from the TP Administrative Commander. The COC will determine whether the COC
will hear the complaint or defer the complaint to the Chief of Police without a
recommendation.

If the COC determines to hear the complaint, the COC may direct the Staff Investigator
to conduct an investigation and the COC may conduct hearings regarding the
complaint. The COC must conclude any outstanding investigation and hearings of a
complaint within sixty (60) days of deciding to hear the complaint.

The COC may request the complainant(s) be present to provide their testimony of what
caused them to file the complaint.

The COC may request the involved TP employee(s) be present to provide their

testimony and explain their actions. .

a. In accordance with Garrity v. New Jersey, 385 U.S. 493 (1967) ("Garrity Rights"),
statements made by TP employees during COC administrative investigations may
not be used in any subseguent criminal proceedings against that TP employee. In
addition, based on NLRB v. Weingarten, 420 U.S. 251 (1975) (“Weingarten
Rights"), TP employees will have the right to have union representation for any

Rev. November 9, 2022



COC investigatory interview, which the employee reasonably believes may result
in disciplinary action.

b. No employee of the FOP shall be compelled to make a statement, either aral or
written, about a comptlaint until they have been advised of the complaint and the
possible disciplinary action {o be taken by the GCRTA if the complaint is sustained.

6. The COC Staff Investigator may be called upon to provide any request for information
to the COC for clarity.

7. The COC may utilize subject matter experts for the purpose of providing knowledge
and expertise on a matter under review.

8. Upon the conclusion of the investigation of the complaint, the COC shall vote on a
recommended disposition(s) for adjudication of the complaint.

. STANDARDS OF PROOF — DISPOSITIONS

1. No finding with respect to an allegation of a case shall be sustained unless it is proven
by a preponderance of the evidence, For purposes of applying the “preponderance of
the evidence” standard of proef, TP employee performance shall be evaluated against
the policy, procedure, and/or training that was in effect on the day of the incident, or
during the relevant time period during which the incident occurred.

J. STANDARDS FOR RECOMMENDATION REGARDING CORRECTIVE OR
OTHER REMEDIAL ACTION

1. When considering a recommendation regarding corrective or other remedial action,
the COC shall apply a standard of "just cause.” In determining whether there is just
cause for the recommended corrective or other remadial action, the CQC shall
consider all of the following:

a. Was the TP employee forewarned of the rule, policy, or procedure as well as the
consequences for violating the rule, policy or procedure?

b. s the recommendation regarding corrective or other remedial measure reasonable
based on the TP employee’s conduct?

¢c. Was the investigation prior to recommending corrective or remedial action
complete, fair, and objective?

d. |s there substantial evidence to support the recommendation regarding corrective
ar other remedial action?

e. |sthe recommendation regarding corrective or other remedial action free from bias
and discrimination?

f. Isthe degree of corrective or other remedial action reasonably related to the nature
of the offense?

Page |10 Rev. November 9, 2022



K. ADJUDICATION OF COMPLAINTS

1. After the COC has reviewed all the evidence, facts, and circumstances from the
investigation of the comptaint, the COC shall vote on a recommendation using one (1)
of the following findings for each aliegation:

a. Sustained: Preponderance of the evidence supports a finding that the alieged
conduct occurred and the TP employee's actions were inconsistent with
GCRTA/TP policy, procedure, and/or training or federal, state, and local laws and
regulations.

b. Sustained in Part: Preponderance of the evidence supports a finding of a
GCRTA/TP palicy, procedure, and/or training or federal, state, and local laws and
regulations violation on one or more, but not all, of the complainant's allegations.

c. Sustained for a Violation not Based on Original Complaint: Preponderance of
the evidence supports a finding of misconduct that was not included in the
complainant’s original allegations but arose out of the incident that is the subject
of the complaint.

d. Exonerated: Preponderance of the evidence supports a finding that the alleged
conduct occurred, but the TP employee’s actions were consistent with GCRTA/TP
policy, procedure and/or training or federal, state, and local laws and regulations.

e. Unfounded: Preponderance of the evidence supports a finding that the alleged
conduct did not ocour,

f. Not Sustained: The facts and circumstances fail to establish whether or not the
conduct occurred.

¢. Administratively Dismissed: The complaint is not GCRTA/TP related, does not

Sinvelve a TP employee, or is related to a service delay that is determined to be
unavoidable,

L. RECOMMENDATION REGARDING CORRECTIVE OR OTHER REMEDIAL
ACTIONS

1. Where the COC reaches an adjudication of “Sustained,” "Sustained in Part," or
"Sustained for a Violation not Based on Original Complaint” on one or more
allegations, the COC shall deliberate on a recommendation regarding appropriate
corrective or other remedial action.

2. Potential corrective and other remedial actions include re-training, coaching from a
supervisor, first written reminder, second written reminder, decision making laave,
termination, or other action that may be appropriate to address the violation,

3. Todetermine the recommended corrective and/or remedial action, the COC shall refer
to the relevant GCRTA/TP policies addressing discipline, re-training, supervisory
intervention, or other remedial action for misconduct or deficient performance. The
COC shall make recommendations consistent with, and not materially deviating from,
GCRTA's positive discipline policy, any applicable collective bargaining agreements,
and/or any other relevant GCRTA policies.

Page |11 Rev. November 9, 2022



M. RECOMMENDATION REGARDING COMMENDATIONS

1,

During review and consideration of investigations, COC members may identify TP
employee performance that is commendable, superior, noteworthy, or otherwise
deserving of special and positive recognition. In such circumstances, a COC member
may move that the COC recommend a commendation that is consistent with GCRTA’s
positive discipline policy and TP's award recognition program.

i{f a majority vote approves the recommendation, the Chair shall provide a written
commendation of the identified TP employee's performance to the Chief of Police,
Chief Operating Officer, and GCRTA CEQ/General Manager.

N. FINAL SUMMARY

1.

The Chair shall prepare a Final Summary that shall include the COC’s findings and,
where applicable, recommended corrective or other remedial action, and a brief ouliine
of the evidence that the COC used to support the disposition and/or recommendation.

If the COC's recommended disposition departs from the COC Staff investigator's
recommended disposition, the Final Summary shall also include a written justification
for the departure. The Final Summary may also include suggestions regarding
GCRTA's and TP's policies, strategies, tactics, and/or training.

Within ten (10) days of receiving a Final Summary involving a finding of "Sustained,”
"Sustained in Part,” or "Sustained for a Violation not Based on Original Complaint” on
one or more allegations, the Chief of Police shall hold a hearing, at which time the
involved TP employee(s) may present evidence and give their version of the incident.

Within ten (10) days of the conclusion of the hearing under subsection (c) of this
section or receipt of a Final Summary that does not involve a finding of “Sustained”
“Sustainad in Part,” or "Sustained for a Violation not Based on Original Complaint”™ on
one or more allegations, the Chief of Police shall notify the involved TP employee(s),
the complainant, and the COC of the outcome, including the disposition of the
allegations and the corrective or remedial action(s) imposed, if any.

If the Chief of Police deparis from the COC's recommendation, the Chief of Police
shall provide a written explanation for the departure to the Chair of the COC.,

O. RECORD REPOSITORY

1.

All original records relating to the COC activities and operations shall be maintained
in accordance with the current GCRTA public records policy and appropriate retention
schedule. All public records requests should be directed to the DGM of Legal Affairs
or their designee for appropriate action.

Page |12 Rev. November 8, 2022



P. OVERSIGHT AND RESPONSIBILITY

1. These COC Operating Procedures shall be subject to review, revision, and updating
by GCRTA's General Counsel in coordination with the Chief of Police and TP
leadership. Amendments to these COC Operating Procedures shall be approved by
the GCRTA Board.

Page |13 Rev. November 9, 2022



408y Heday anuansy

S GOT [ [Eec’aes'cr S Z80BRETSE §  OeIrERYWTE §  WOrHI HS0ST HEOOLE I ] % EEOEEFST H SN Tt - R ITIIE HEYD THEGE

HoraT EERENE] [FLrg=rl s T8 I9TSET EESTEESH ] [CFSETT (70’581 S BT BELSTT HEYD 30 SI0HNGS HIH10 ONY SLNIWEENANEE TrlBEans
000 - - - B - FIET T - - B - 5 - A5 IISHAEWIRYE HLY WIZES TR, - INIDTWN el
SbPOST wWREET s£ETEr b REBFSTE'FS 5 IEIFERIR R S e] 5 5 e 1TH30E
X290 - M5sE TR oopaTr'te < - s Boop ¥ 5 Lt R ERET]
26009 - - - % - L o e - - £ - |9 - L SIUITVHI0N.
b= [ SBU'ELE'T 5 BEFNST 5 R XO0'FE LENLT 5 FERRE 5 1I5Us SLdIT3Y SDFAVTI06ET
MEEQ [HEEaTE E TEE'ETE'S 3 IFEESOT 5 wEg 1saGEl LFEE'zaE! 5 WEGINT % GEEEOT FINVLSESY SNILWHI4G 198304
HELD %6556k EECer SSE'TIR' 5 AT 5 WK - - B - 5 - DRI TRoO0T 22505 W03 IRVNALAY S0 LNIATSS
I8 |sess 18| HEr SEE'ZaT t EEOES 5 HEFD - 1E8's H - 4 4667 TH2E¥ ke To30T "1Ev1S " IWHIN] NI ETSAEVETH INTHD
HIFD %EST YRETIEE TFS'55E'E S SeFEesT 5 RETE 120578) [t 5 T6d'36 5 CeGTIS STRERAIY A% 1 INGLOHdIDNOM3Y

L WINEE IFTEILE L TLEEIFE %150 505'ER BTEES Il [FEgTad AFAFATH HIELG NILCEANE
HL0D [CTSEE) EE TS asiaes § IEIE 5 HERG i%EEEL] [5R=] S ObOsr % EIER HRLG
%810 - A5T' 0> GRATH 5 GrTELS 5 WIER - OESEL 5 WS ¥ see'Rd AVEOINI LEFEZENT
HAT( JETE: R weresd Ak 5 GEIESE 5 RIOE 134288) 8071 $  SIEIE £ BEIBI RGO THENTY
HBET'D SBED SEO'RL T LSE 4 EBESTE 5 %000 - - 5 ~ % - SHCESSIMAICTS 5572 SLHTR Sl
Tl - a5 'EBET i) §  LISENT s ROTH HOLEL o s 5 BO9'ER § 5885 SNOSESILN 0SS HOISSI SN OO RIS HINTY

TNEATE UFHED

SEHrES %0579 TEIE6E T G5 T BT TIFSIT T RSTBL BT ElEck SER 0GR T2 RS SAI0ISEFS BNLYHIIG TOLGLARS
RS EEE HEEETE ELETEIEET S TSI 5 WSTBL HILF Y RIS S SER'DERTE % SESHISEE WL I F SIS

pETl e

SO HLTBE S50'EOT3 OTE'TRFLE SLESHERE WSHEL - TTUELRE ESETEE'T FINDESS STy HIONISSE TLOEINS
S5 T F R ETER I 4 ESOE s mSLT W LT TIEEL 5 LAie % TB5'BSL SHLLTNHL 3NN
LD - LLTPES'T e i) 5 SRLETST 5 w3 - - 3 - 5 - STedt
REE'T - srglae's =5780% 5 HSENETR % NSTET - CEFERLE 5 rEE' 4 SEPOSLE SOHYDITHYS IBRIEES - G593
=051 HEED BAITE TSTE6E'Y 4 EBSHIT'S % HIET HaT5T BI5TE S5 ITTLEE % 9r9'BBE TIN5 ATE S
®esi HEETL Ee2'efE I T 5 arg'OezE s wsTE o FR] L] £ GS0'STH % ETERGE 5 SIHYS HEW

IV YRSV

TRl $0 % EDAMNFERL TIKRIFN, [T [EFY THI0L 1% AVEHIE ERITTE TN | HLNCHE SEERCN
LNIHEM g i 1NNy 5 BONE FUECET ]

TEO? 'TE BIECHDD QN TO07 'TE HIE0EHY 93003 3043 I 304
AN Y HIND - EFIE BT DF GIAWdiNGT 03043338 HEW 3 I EY0dIY
ALEDHL LS el T MO8 ONYEINTEY 43 ETIE0 IHL




[ALR & ity anuansy

IR FTrE3 va0'LLEIT S De0gRdbIE 3 SIGTIFLEE £ wboeaT ®bEel VT 5 EED'EENBZ 5 FEYDEEYE [ %k TYHANID - ORAEITE HAD BLDL

ST WBE'D {HIT 9T EES'?ZL'SH SEETREYE LT 1%0< Bek [ dSLER QFSE HESWD 4 SI0HN0S HIHLG ONY SOHENTSUOSIEYE TR0 55
SO E - - - SOFD - - B - ZFIWISHARNGTE 920 HE LST0M - INII3AN AL
ST HEa RS WSS EEE'BET'TH 00 - : - - SHY TEId3
WD - - - - LAt - - - - WEHED Va3
w0 - - - L] - - - - A ST T3
WA - SUFIRUE SLF'SLET T 6L SO0 BITEl 19 BGYDS 51129 SAGINTTHZSIN
®ETY - PEREGE TESESOT - SEBEd - a0'501 - FRNLN55Y DNILTETIO0 TREHI1d
®IT4 (xesas] 153555 F] FITHE DH'DAE %3049 - - GO GEE [HZE D300 '2eeds TH2aat DNAILNRA InNIATYd
wZod 5 5au) o] lice2E s LEOTE 'SP %209 %005 MRS EEn'ST THZERW 20000 “FI2S TWu3aTE NN ISHNAWITE LHD
RERD (o] e 5E3] HAESsT DONDEE'T AT {sI6 8] 351'T5 oA EOT SANMAFH X¥L ZRed 4 O3

HIWD Y SEAUMAE SIHLC WY AL NS FETTANIEE

PEL03 FIRH ~ UOTIEX|y FF0T UCHIEMCEY TTAT

ST SEEHE LTS BTV E EEO'ERST %10°%F %S ] TET'RET LOG'SET ANNINTS YIHED TYIOLERE
ETEE] [EE ] 12627 [2s! LOCETZ [FET SEQD BT EEL'S HHFBS HIHLD
5919 (525T) & SELELS o0'aTE MIEQ WREEG ¥Sr'sE S TACEE ESTYILNI
BIQ [B5aeH EETEST 0008k *eaa (MaeTH WEESE il ARDAN 1%z
SETT [t 510 3o 506 =000 - - - - SHOIBSIARAD 531 S2HSHS TasivN
%ES0 - LOFSERT 003’598 BOTQ ELET 5859 tEr'ag M DS SHCASSIAKSOOY SN OSSN T ANIS LY I e

SHREATE BTG

%059 BLYY S TIFSLTTIT TEC ST T0E WETHL L5 TL2'TEE SEEPETE BSE AT SARTTTRITE SELVENED TR0 BT
ETE wIET ABEELHE TIFSLT I [T KIEEL BAGT TLTRES SISHETT PSEIEE T ok 35N B SIWS

BT Ty L T E

= SLFVE SREH T UL YR BT HSrET - BLPOES'S TP RELT STHY2 EEOAESSY THIOLHAS
EELT [s09 GTY £5b'SH'E ZESEE ®ILT I%E5 Ry e R AER'EbS DRRATO, TRFMA
BTG - SEEETST el ANID - - - SEWET
HET - DSELETD OO0PS EEEED - FEFRLE KT SOWNIIYYE INFONLT - aSe0
BT [6g 1T EOS'EIL'S LSETRE'S BLET rreet HEHERE SIS SFTHS | 1CHLAGawd
%€ SEGTEE 5 arg'oez'e 4 DS & HSLE HEA'LT 5 gl & oA 5 SUVEHSD

SIS IFONGSENd

TALOL $0 % ZONYHIR AN [La, L3O $LA TREQE 0% IONYHIR AIHATA HANHN HLNGH#
A0 e I AT IRy L3sTaE

TIOE "TE W00 QIUNT GLARIE SHE MO
iR TWHINAN - EED0AE O 03H SN0 QIARITH HSYD 40 180434
AAEGALLRY 1ISNEVHE TYNOEDIH ANYIIATTD 24N IS IAL




YEE'E
%ET0
SLEE0
WECD
WDEP
Wris
WF0'S
%P0
GG
W0
WEi't
WET'E
%90t
%002
WEL L
%BLE

WLl
WELE
FSE 0

— oy

LEDE
I
eg
L80t
FEDE
SEL
LTAIES
86
6
G6E

RELE

EED
Wl T

WOET

%%S5ED
¥k
HEE' T
¥EED
eR1E
RG2S
WRECE
Wit
bt
E TR
b ST
HEER

L o T

—

FAES
8204
PG
5iB
5.
it

%Ea'L

EY
a3tA

¥

ALIENAYH 1S3HILN
FDVHIAY OL SAVG  GINUDIY
Eia-ERR

bg2iLeas ZEZLTLBELS
3 SLE LS i
o ZSTPLS
0% 059818 L
gTO IS DG0N00'CE  SE0E
9E8% QFFLEF' LS ¥SEE
951LS 026 L4028 ¥BOL
SOL'LS GHRCEL'LS 1&g
EER'CE O0D000'SS  GAOE
2559518 004'000'5ES SsOL
SETEES BLOSHR FE 89z
£LZ'9L 18 O0G'O00'GES G980
9555518 OHLiES'6S £ED:
936'B5% CEIL96'PS (25513
PELEES STLPPE'ZE  ovs
0% LISBEE' LIS L
FEL'EGLSE
0% ¥55'p7Eg L
0% EFGRES L
L+ H LEE'ETTES
W3 0/7'86% L
0% 362165 L
£9}'6PLS D56 PE5'98%
g ZLE'RIQ'ES k
o Sii'hnLs 1
ot HIORES
ag £r0'slS i
o OER A LE LTS H
£ER'GE GOD'0o0'SS SB01
Z565ES 488°051°9% SEm
0G0'zs OODoG0ES 801
00428 000'000°ES SBOR
£1Z'0:% 0oH'008'Es  SsOE
GSF LS 005 L65'PS  SBOLE
0% Eba'5yas L
0% DZO'BOT L LS
0% DZO'BOE LLE L
TIIoNINE  SAvD
TYLOL WHaL

Z 404 abey

HWYE ATH
HNYE ASH
dIIMEHNYE ATH
SNYICOIN 1324118
SN¥IGOIN 13448
SMYICOIN 135148
SMYIGHN 13411s
SMI0OIN 134158
SNYIGOIN 154118
S3AILIENIAS JOLTTH
SNYIOMN 1153118
SNV ICDIN 134118
SMYI00IN 1254148
SNYICOIN 13413
OIHG 40 3EV1S

CIHG 40 3Evis
SIIANS-MHMNTE AT

HNYE A3
OIHG 40 3EvES

HNYE ATH
HAMNYE NOEIMELNNH
HNYE Shd
HNYE A
OIHG 30 31v¥1S
SOR100IN 1341LS
S IO3IN 334118
SMON 1341Ls
SMYI00IN 133ILs
SNYIODIN 13314S
SNYICTIN 13418
HNYY AR

MNYE NO1DMINNH
NOILALILSNI

HIT ATA-NISYE HILYD
HIOTANYHD
HIOF ATH-HOEYW 1600
EELE
STHA
BiHA
SHA
23
87H4
<0 HMYBCNYT 32Avd
TH4
HAIHA
d4344
giHd
GHC SVS-HIEYN 19007

CIHO 8YLS
ANAWIZPCANT v

g3 A3
CIHD Hv1s

H33 A3
ANNQIIY Kol 83 1ws
EMNCO0Y AQOLSND ING
ANNG AZALLDY F3A07dINE
QIHO YvLis
g7TH4
g1H4
g7H4
87H4
£1H4
8344
LN AZA- 120 ANYHIHS

el ASNOW
LNIWNE LS

2262 '1£ ¥380L20 40 SY
SINIWISIANI AMNSYIHL 40 AHOLNIANI
ALIMOHANY LISNVYHL TYNOIDIYE AONVITATND ¥ILVIHD

ZE0ZALAEL
SCOLSLIEL
TEQTAILE
CECTILILL
STOTIBEIOLE
CEOEILEIE
GECTWY
SZ0THFERD:
AT
LZ0THIPTIF
GEOLILED
GZOLELG
GZ0TI0LE
FEOZIAZI0
CEOTIEfL L

CEOTIEL
CEOTIEf L L

CENTIAL
CEOZIEML

ce0ZiLEL
ZEOZILILE
CTOZILEL
SE0EILEL
Zeoesliel
SCOZIPLL
SEOELTIG
SEOLELF
SEOLET
FEOLIOEIG
¥EOLILIE
2T

ZEOTIEFLE
Fiv¥g

ALTEREYIN ISYHIEND

ZEOTALEMCL
CEOE LR
ZEDEME/QL
ZEGEMENL
0T3Ol
CEOTILTIGL
ECCTHPEraL
rAtA A
cZleingie
cEBElL
CZOEMLESD
EECLIPEIG
CECEITHE
EZOEI8EE
CEOTILEDL

ONAS HILWW TY 20T TeioL

OmNd HOZWIW 90T

TS LNIWIATHOANS AT TVLOL

EEOTILERL
CEOTIEEIDE

AN A A NE ]
CEOZIERL

ZZ0ZALEMRSL
CEOE/ e
CEDT/LEML
ZEDZILEDL
ZE0EFLEMDL
ETOLHFETL
TEOEHES
0L
Z202rien
LEDTIOE
LEpErLe
ZEOEIOENG

QM ININITHOING vl
QN SINTHOESNT IWLOL

MG ZONYHNSNE

ONId TPYINID TYL0L

NN TeaNTD

GNAS LNTNFHLIY ONOE TRLOL

CECEIEEID:
3avQ

O8N4 LNIWAHLL TS QNGE
dNd



YLBE

%38T
%BLE
YEED
%EG'E
%EFE
Bl 0
%E8E
YSHE
5EE
%050
%h0FE
WELE
WOE'y
W%iOE
Y05°E
WSLE
%Eil'E
Y%ESE
%00'E
%Sl

WHET"L

®FLC

WEEC
W lGD
YEFD
Wl
WEEL
W9
WEE'Z
WSEC

SblE

%oH g
WSED

QA ALRENAYW  1S3W3EN
ITVHIAY OL SAVO  0INHEDOY

ZFL

ELY
03
ESS
37
GGG
BE64
Zet
LG%

Beg
200
gLl
oLt
865
G5t
b¥e

o545
Fittin
BGL
Fel
SEE
FGL
£8E

1
L

IOV HIAY

SL1'505°18  6S0°80Z'¢RES

Z24'a09% 856160618
(7] TIogEF 55 L
o5 65.'988 1
453 SZL'E E
SLSRS SEF'EER TS £8l
LLB'ES FIS'SHEPE RO
(Rer- LO0'CR0'SE (=
oo0'ses LEF'SE8"vE BEZ
PETTIS ao0'so0'ss Se0L
o00'8LE SRI'PEE'PS  SEO1
BEL'FYE Q00'¢00'ss £5¢
B56'aFL Q00's00'sE BEL
BZ0'IER S00'%00'ss SBOL
02’558 SL0'5REFS 692
£/2'09% 200'000'sS SEO
I02'5e% ZLY'LZGE'PE a5z
LFPSrL 19 Rl oy [
#5198 200°0o0'ss B0
AlFSLE PEE'SLE'FS 959
LB0'FS O0B'L¥6FS 9iF
BZBLLLS A89°6F0"81S
tEC 05! 'B6FS sa0i
g5¥% CoU'0a0zE S8l
[0E'9% 0o00ZE S80:
ZaE'Es OoO'00G'SE  SR0:
2057715 SIEGHELS FCF
SRLB1LE SLESER LS £L6
+5L T3 251 FEEFS ELG
0% Q05'z9% L
0% B6EZOF LS L
Bs ZSECZE LS
0% SOF ZFE'LE L
0% H5'LES L
TRLIONIEd SAYG
TrLOL AL

g 4o g afiey

CiHO 40 J1Y1S HO HYLS
HETE A HIZ ATH
HNYE DG ANPOI3Y AQOESND O
FRARRNTAS JGLTTHE 4D Wl 45 WNTEANYT H3A9E
SA0OIN 334118 49 WoH ARnSYIHE 8N
SFHEMHNAD3S dGLTHH 45 Wol 9344
SFLENIES SO 25 Wad) 5344
SOYI0TIN F3411s 35 Wy g3
SMWI00IN 334118 5 WY 554
STEWNIIS SCLTHH I
SHLWPNDAS dGL1HH g1H4A
SOYI00IN 334118 g1H4
STHEHNI3S CLTHH d3 ANVEONY] d3AYE
SWI0IN 334118 g1H4
SFLHNIFS 2018 g3 S LN
SHLENIES dOLTHH d3 HNYEONY H3AYE
SWI0DIN 334118 g1H4
SHLENDIIS SOLTHH J10M AENSYIHL SN
SHLENIAS SOLTHE 310N ARNSvIdE SN
SMYI02IN 1341LS i
SMIODIN 135148 B3
SMI0TIN 134113 B7Hd
SNYI0DIN 132118 E1Hd
SMYI0JIM 13314S BTH4
SMEISIIN 132148 gTH4
SALLADAS dOL T 310N AUASYINL SN
HNYE DN ANNCOY ACCLSND DNd
HNYE A HIZ A3
CHHO 40 31¥1s CHHO Hv.Ls
MNYE ATM HIF A=A
NCALOLEESNI LHIWNHISN

2T0T 'LE ¥IFOLDC 40 SV
SINIWLSIANE AUNSYIHL 30 AdOLNIANI

ZC0TAILE
CEOEHILE
AT RS
ZLOTHRERL
YECTISLAL
PLOT/REE
CEDTETIS
SCOLEEls
FEOZIEEs
FLOZIBES
aArA T
SZOZIGER
EEDEfrE
STOLIDES
EEDEfLERE
CZ0RILEE
SZOLIPLT
CE0EOEL
CTOTACEN

FEOZiPE
FEQZISF
FEQTIGEE
AL YA
FEOLIBERE
FEOLISTIG
FEOECEr
EEQEINE
CEGENRILE

EZ0ENSLL
CEEIETLL

EER-LE

ALENLIVIN

ALIHOHINY LISNYHL T¥YNOIOTE ANV I3AT IO H3LlvIun

ZZGEME0L
EZ0LEOL
ZCREREOL
EAANTATSALS
sEOgfaLtl
AN FA LT AL
CEOLILENE
CEDLIEES
1E0ZISEY
ZEOZME®E
b2t ALE ]
ZEQTIOES
CEOZEENL
ZEQEIDES
LE0LILESS
£Zigreers
EEDEfRLF
EE0IEEE
LTOCIBIT

LEOZIPE
VEQEEY
LZ0ZIGERG
LeDgmiEng
ZE0TIBEE
AN EAL ALY
TEOZIENS
STOZALEML
EEDEMA NI

CEGEriEnL
SEOEIEE0L
3iv¥Q
IASVHINNL

SANAE TV TVLoE
QNN FAMISIY TYLIOL

GNNd 3AHIS3
ONAF TPLIDYD ViM TVLCL

OrNd B Ledel wid

anNNS NOISNZD TVL0L

GHND HOISHEd
el 13+



0895535

OZG'B0Z LS

SISy puog

QU03L 249 1S [ DOOSE'P0L'D1S | DOTODO'SES'SS OO0 0SSR L1 | oo'ose'sel’'Ls : 00p0s OOSE'ROL LS ODOOL'0SF Ivs
COans' 155" AW0EL'eLT L J0D0G'000"L B O5L54T QG0ELGIE o 00'05L 64T COOG0'osn’ L
GO0 OSE'DoE | gorsee’seg’L o0 000'sEL"L (AR erA W) I0'SES'E0T G DISES 20T o CO0'GoLS
CO'OSL ' EEF' v J0'SiE'000'y Q0 00GG'0ES'E CO'SLE S8 Jocic'ogr AR QoS e oup COO00's5¥'s:
GO 0566281 OUSLPESY L { DODOO'SES'L GOSir Lyl Q06 irE oG Qoeibr iyl QC 000’6 /5S
COHOSZ'6EE'E QOSEL'ERE'T OU'000'SEE'E 0O'sZL S N R AL 0o 0OSZL 4G OO DO0SRT'T
g0 CEOTIE L CEOZITE TTOTIEL ZEZOTILIS ZTOZ1L49 ETOTILIG VOOTILIZL
surannbay | geelesnnbay mgeied sjqeied [aETHENTE WY jepgeiey isgefey Buppueising
e felo) FHASS 1480 ediouug }sauslg SHASBG 1G] [edrulig 1SISUE [ed|2ullg ey

ZZTO0Z 'LE WABOLTO 40 SY

SALYLS ONY 3TNEIHOS IAYIS 1834

ALHOHLNY LISNYYL TYNOIDTE ONVIIAZTD HALYIND

peHnDaY SPISY 185 AjIUOH

(ZZ0Z 10} BpISY 10G) AouERY JUALIND

0EZT 280
1207 '38Q
5202 38Q
5207 "33(
ZzoZ 38Q
areq
Aumiep
jeti

spueg [el0].
A8y XB] SIES-BLOE SBUSS
"ASY XE] 53{85-0L0T SHLSS
A3y XB] SSEF-Gi0F SUBS

'A9Y Xe| S3ieS-vri0Z Saueg

AOY e | SeieR-Ti0T ssuag
spuog



HESD
WEET

%l00
Sl00
Yol
S lB0
Y l0'0
Yt
%i0Q
%0
%00
YO0
RbO0
YOG
#0734

wEZ'0
SatrQ'0 SEED LIORDO'ES 2hL'ess'voLs
WELD N ££9'65% ¥l BEZ'EOTS
%500 YLED LAG'IZS ZEL L OR'SEES
%500 A TR 85688 EBL'RIB'ELES
5500 WG LD ZLO'0PS SBLOTE LTS
RSN WEL D bii'LEs AEL9GEERES
%S00 WELG B69'NES 8250'894 5008
WLCT %30 608'L63 L HOTS
%O00 %OT 0 SL8TES 2IB'ZBE'ICES
%070 A0E0 BEOLES LA 00YGETS
SEB0°0 %EE0 TZE1Es £98° 104 SETS
%ECT %LZ0 TORBES LLLGISERES
S%0L'D Y%EED PESES LSIGLRIPES
# 0= A FERPTE! JONV G
1IMHYM O¥YANYLS SOVNIAY  1SIHILM IOVHIAY

Teoe

%I6'T
HELT
%60'Z
%S|
p AN
%050
%0L 0
oL
BLOD
%O
#0734

IANAGNOI QuYONYLlS

A

WOEL

EATINN
WEE'E
HE0E
%Al
ShBE L
%E8'0
SeEQD
HEF' 0
WEZ'D
YaGl 0
# 07314

P feq 2 pung fsuoy Anseal; g sienbs pely 1aNIEy

'S Asnsear) yuow g o) spisdt Jusieanba uodnod afelase Busao #

“l¥ L

%i8T
%69
%0Z'E
%30T
%ol
%50'
%850
%EFD
%ETD
%640
FRE

2OYHIAY

ZT0%

ZZ0Z 1L W380L00 HONOUHL 3170 OL ¥Y3A
JOMNYIWEOIE3d INSLSIANT S0 AHYIINNG

ALIMOHLNY LISNVEL TYNOIDIY ONVIHATND Y3LVIHD

¥AAN! HFENN H2A0 SOTHA IOVEIAY ViN

oS 300'vE

ERLE0E'LE
OFZ 8058
£51'65/8
ETE'EYSS
19¢°9583
9o0'eeTs
gOS601S
¥BE'PYS
0ge"Lve

3¢
GEFEE]
LSFHALN

LHLERLCEE

PER'BYL'GSLS
LLB'IPE'ES0S
5/6'190'05E%
BER'RGF'ELES
B9L'A15'65E8
BFO'CCS'arEs
PR SSE'BE7S
0S9'sLe'98es
964 '0LFO0ES
ZZ5'vFC'08TS
IINYIVE
IOYHIAAY

dLYQ 0L UY3A

HAaW333d

HAGWIACH

=H3A01230

HE8l=31d438

L5080y

Alar

3N

Al

R dY

H2HYW

AuiHE3S

ALSNNYT
HiNCH



8B'ECE
LEOPSS
£L9gLs
18pois
A SIS

SFLEL'ELE
L¥'¥EG'9D%
FOOLL'ELS
FOOLLESS

05'856'28%
IZ'STL'ELES
99°252'68%

I¥'38%
L£528'2%
CO0G0'SHS
83 EHG'ES
BB FLLLES
S0z

25857'CT%
BEEYO'ZSS
L0'GRY LS

—— e

LU58F 8LS

£jo i abeq

3190 OF WYEA L20E
iV OL WY3IA 220T
2202 H380L30

FLVA 0L 8v3A LEGE
LW Ol Hv3A ZT0T
c20Z2 ¥380C100C

ILvd OL U¥3A LZ0C
J1%3A 01 "v3A 220<
2202 ¥380130

WA Ol Bv3A LToe
31w 01 Uv3A 2202
[dvra-Elclaibele]

Z220¢ ¥390120

OIHOYYLS
LMNNGIIY d35MS XNYE AN
ONMNd ENFWITHCINT M

OiHOYVYLS
NI SNTENENI

ANAQOTY 433MS HNYE AIM-LNNOSIY ENYHO RN
AINNO3OY AGCLSND Ind

giH4

LNNOTOY J3IMS MhYE A

OIHOYYLS

LMNNOIIV XYL STWS-NOLDNIINNH

GNEd TYEINID

LAY ASNOWH NCLINLLNNH
ONNd ENIWIHILTY ONOE

(SISVE HSYO! SONINYVI LNIWESTANI NO LHOdTH
ALIMOHLNY LISNVHL TVYNOISZY ANVYTIEATD ¥ILvIHD



SODIR'ES
FL2090F1E
BZ':0T'983
BE 1S
06005298
G GUE'CE

L8018
LGLZS
FRAE
518

E0'BERS
EQOPEELS
SLEBL'ES
bFLLE
¥LGLL'ES

£L096'C0LS

B IBD'1Z0 LS
04°822'361%
LEPILE

EF POFEELS

£ o g abey

IEVD CL 9V LEDZ
350 OL HYEA E20T
2202 Y4A80 L0

SE90 0L Jv3A L20g
SEV0 OL WY3IA Z20C

€202 ¥38901.00

200 0L He3A LZ0T
Y0 0L Wv3A 2202
<208 380100

FLVA O 834 LEBE
FLWd 0L UM 2202
202 {330120

ZZ0Z ¥3d0100
(SI1Svd HSVO! SONINYYI INIWLSIANI NO LHOJTH
ALIHOHLNY LISNYHL TYNOIOTN aONVIZIAT T HIALVINS

INNCDDY d33MMS HNYE A3M

310N AHNSYIHL SN
8044
OMN ¥4V YN

1T E AINOW HNYE A3
ANNOIOY ALIALLDY 33A04INE

LNNOJOY d33MS HNYE AT

CIHOYY1S
QMO NOISN3d

LNOOO0Y d33MS HNYE AT
HIOLYIN TWOOT-OIMOYYLS

QNS HOLVIN o0



%0¥'L
LLLEZr'0Ees
085'900°FS

5L1'GOSTES
{#eg'cEis)

BEE'PESTS
41¥a oL
HVIA 2202

¢ 40 g sbeg

%482
7B8'8¥/'G5EE

£O2'208'13
G11'606'1%
(685'5¢8%)

9¥e' L858
H3A80L00

PR TA R
L' BEE'YEYTY
by ovziioeg

8574195118
IZPBLLLES
PB2/5'0628
TS
00sZi'ed
00°'529'c8%
G5 OFL'LBLS

ALVa OL YA LZGE
4190 O1 "V3A 2202
ZZ0T W380L30

V0 OL dv3A L20T
ALWD Ol WY3IA ZE0T
C2U€ H380CLD0

¢Z0Z 4380130

SSEMTINESIANE NO 31314 3DYHIAY

{LSOD] IDNYIVE LNIWLSIANI IDVHIAY

GINYYE JWODNE LSTHI LN
SO

DMINNISIY

SEEE IR =lalel

{SISVE HSYD) Q3AEDIH LSIHILNI

SONNd TV Y101

EMNOIOV d33MMS HMNYE ATH
JLON AHNSYIEL SN

g71H4

OIHOYYLS

NN SAMIS3IH

{S1SVE HSYO) SONINYVYI INJWLSIANI NO 1HOd3H
ALHOHLNY LISNVYHL TYNCIDIY ONY1ZAT 1D H3LVIND



e
084

L
ALIGN LV
SOVHIAY

%I8T
WSEE
%950
%4680
%31'E
%GED
%iE0
aIFA
JOVYIAY

%00 004
YSt EF
%%BES
%rlE
R TR
%000
%B0E'E
aviol
20 IN3OH3d

651°ZZ0°585%
Q00'SSE 1818
GOO'00a'sES
BEC'DST 4%
POLESE LLES
LFa'gLs
LLO'EEP'ELS
INDOWY
A0V

650°802'FBES
95L°Z01 L1918
£4r'25o'vZe
BEEDGRLS
¥0LLSZ'238
1r9'8Ls
98L'Zev'els
TYQIONIHd

ZZOT “1¢ WAGOLO0 SV

QMO4LH0d INIINESIANI 30 NOILISOHNGD

CHOHE0 4 JUDUSIALL |BJO L
SHRINS2S JUBLLISADS) ST
Jaded [EIDlaWHIoT)
RINoooy ey wpss sbuuseg
oG Jeg
WOy deams Jueg Aoy
HIN0oSYy ey Aeuon
JUBUNRASL]



BROEI B G [EUDIZIPRE 08
OF-0E0F TN UOAMO5aY 523151 JO DIEOS PUE $20 BINAACI] BAZRASIIILIDY ‘[AIH0d Prel | Alaoyinyg dseer) jeuti8ay ueansi AFIEIID B 10 FUONBNIFY PuUR SaE PANPOD SYIL JO 959 JSERLT 01 Ja)E) 352

ETOT "EZ YUEW PSIER ASuulzn] 10828 Y 01 UOIZIE0 ASIARY J|E3SUDISSILGLUCT 5313 CIGC
BC-TTOT SAGLUMN ORI USISSILALUOT SHEAT Gy
GIOT 9 A2y Paep (5312)30 168 - DG Projuaq Fusy RIBYS 03 w0 A0SOy BEIS UOISHUELOT S3IE)3 Gle0
T-5ET0-ANE-E00E J20Wny UaIudD {ELHo L UDISSILIGT 51513 GIED
13} pue {950 TOT SUORZAE 30T PISINGY YD
Tk 303G U 3 O} S|ENpIAlpU 2|oeR|dde w) pepaoad ulag s HIBLLIGEUT Sk,

FALON
adpay |an4 EUE SLeH QiNE
AEAS1EEY DUog O 9RO MR 1D Hueg
SIGBUHSIUE BIG0 BY1S ‘
FEEILEPE = g)
JENA30Y X2 | SHEES PUE WAWIGEE pUog Jueg uoyFuizuny
UNCIDY ACIIsS PHLE Y1
P23 31987 PUB 18N [2Fpo)sn; ¥UEH Jhg
S301AAS U Uy kel HUeR Aax
diysuniiegas (o angep UOF RIS (2 uenld fEueg

LEOE 'TE AQ0RI0 10 SY
sdiysuo|Ieiey [Eouzuly pue Junueg
AILCUINY Hsuel] euoiFay puelEnap) 1a1es.0



Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority

2023 DRAFT

Board and Committee Meeting Schedule

January 10 - Committees
January 20 — Board Working Session
January 31 — Board

February 14 ~ Committees
February 22 — Audit Committee
Fabruary 28 — Board

March 7 ~ Committees
March 21 — Board and Annual Meeting*

April 4 — Cammittess
April 18 — Board

May 2 - Commiltees
May 9 ~ Audit Committee
May 16 — Board

June & — Commitieas
June 27 — Board

July 11 — Commitiees
July 25 - Board

August & — Committees
August 15 — Audit Committee
August 29 - Board

September 12 — Commitiees
Septamber 26 - Board

Qctober 17 — Committees
October 31 — Board

November 2 — Audit Committee
Movemnber 14 — Committeas
November 21 - Board

December 5 — Commitlees
December 19 - Board

*Board Meeting and Annual Meeting on the same day.

2023 Confarences

APTA Legistative — March 12-14
APTA Mobility — April 23-26
APTA Rail - June 11-15

APTA Transit Board Members — TBD — usually in July

OFTA - TBD

APTA TRANSform Conference & Expo — October 8-11



